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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there
is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Bingo Group Holdings
Limited (the "Company”] collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”] for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The directors of the
Company (the “Directors”], having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in
all material respects and not misleading or deceptive and there
are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of
Bingo Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present
the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2015 (the “Year”) to our
shareholders.

GENERAL

During the Year, the Group continues to focus on movie
production, licensing and derivatives, crossover marketing and
provision of interactive contents (“Filmed Entertainment, New
Media Exploitations and Licensing Businesses”) and cinema
investment and management (“Cinema Business”). Trading
business has been considered a discontinued business and no
revenue was generated in this sector since last year.

In view of the on-going development of the Cinema Business,
this segment has become the prime revenue generator of the
Group in the Year. Approximately revenue of HK$76.8 million
and gross profit of HK$44.0 million were generated during the
Year. The Group maintained steady revenue and gross profit in
this sector as compared to revenue of HK$77.5 million and
gross profit of HK$44.5 million generated in last year. The
Group will continue to focus on expanding the audience
headcount and improve the financial performance of the Cinema
Business accordingly.

In the segment of Filmed Entertainment Business, the Group
was locating suitable business opportunities during the Year. No
appropriate target was, however, spotted until in March 2014,
the Group entered into an agreement with a company, which is
an associate of Mr. Chiau Sing Chi (“Mr. Chiau”), to participate
in the development of the feasibility study for a film production.
The initial capital investment of the Group was HK$2.5 million.
The feasibility study should be completed by 30 September
2015. Accordingly, no revenue was generated from that film
during the Year. In the last year, the revenue from a Chinese
language mation picture titled “Journey to the West: Conquering
the Demons” (“JTTW”) of approximately HK$2.1 million was
recorded.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

In the area of animation, the Group was working to develop,
produce and distribute the animation film(s) and TV cartoon(s)
derived from the intellectual property right of CJ7 (&)L 75%). In
relation to the CJ7 animation film(s), the Group has successfully
invited Film Development Fund of Hong Kong to invest in one
animation film. The production of the corresponding animation
film and TV cartoon was still in progress as at 31 March 2015.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Year, the Group recorded a total turnover of
approximately HK$77.0 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 4.2% as compared with HK$80.4 million for
2014. Mild decrease in the Group’s turnover was recorded
during the Year. The HK$77.0 million turnover for the Year
(2014: HK$80.4 million) mainly consisted of the gross revenue
of the Cinema Business of HK$76.8 million (2014: HK$77.5
million).

Loss for the Year of approximately HK$63.0 million was
recorded, which represented approximately 17.1% increase as
compared to the loss of HK$53.8 million for the last year. The
increase in the loss was principally attributable to the net effect
of (i) recognition of non-cash share-based payments of
approximately HK$46.1 million of which approximately HK$41.5
million represented expenses for share options granted to
advisors of the Company for developing Cinema Business and
Filmed Entertainment Business, while only share-based
payments of approximately HK$10.3 million was recognised in
the last year; (ii) impairment of goodwill for New Media
Exploitation Business of HK$8.3 million and impairment of films
in progress for a cartoon TV series of HK$8.5 million in the
fiscal year 2013/14, while only approximately HK$0.8 million
impairment on films in progress was made during the Year; and
(iii) impairment on film rights of JTTW of approximately
HK$11.4 million in the fiscal year 2013/14 while the
corresponding impairment for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$0.3 million.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

As at 31 March 2015, the Group has held trade receivable
from Huayi Brothers Media Corporation (“Huayi Brothers”) in
relation to JTTW of approximately HK$19.9 million, which is in
dispute, and film rights of JTTW of HK$35.8 million (before
amortization of approximately HK$22.2 million and impairment
of HK$11.7 million in aggregate) (Note: Total trade receivable in
dispute between Huayi Brothers and JTTW'’s equity investors
including Lofty Gain Investments Limited (“Lofty Gain”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, amounted to approximately
RMB89.0 million as at 31 March 2015). Since the trade
receivable balance was long outstanding and the Group has
requested Huayi Brothers to settle the receivables but no
positive feedback was obtained, the Group has taken legal
actions to recover the receivable during the Year. Although 1t
ME =R AREBT (Beijing No.3 Intermediate People’s Court,
(“the PRC Court”)) rejected all of the petitions by Lofty Gain on
15 April 2015, the Company is of the opinion that, Huayi
Brothers objectively failed to perform its commitment to sign
the agreement and to perform a supplemental agreement
thereto. After seeking legal opinions on the judgment, Lofty Gain
determined to lodge an appeal against the judgment made by
the PRC Court and the naotice of appeal has been lodged already.
Although the Group has confidence to recover the outstanding
balance through civil actions, in view of the fact that the petition
was rejected by the PRC Court before, the Group made further
impairment for the outstanding receivable in dispute, i.e.
HK$7.5 million for the Year. As JTTW was first released in the
Spring Festival in 2013, which is over two years from the year-
end date of fiscal year 2014/15, the Group has reassessed
the economic value of JTTW expected to be brought to the
Group on a prudent basis, and made an impairment of
approximately HK$0.3 million for the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$238.5 million (2014: HK$238.5 million),
including cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$123.0
million (2014: HK$106.0 million). There was no pledged bank
deposit as at 31 March 2015 (2014: Nil). As at 31 March
2015, the debt ratio (defined as total liabilities/total assets)
was approximately 0.40 (2014: 0.42).

There is no material change of the Group’s total assets and
liabilities positions over the Year. The Group continued to hold
strong cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2015 and
the Board believes that the Group has sufficient resources to
satisfy its working capital requirements. During the Year, the
Group financed its operations with its own working capital. As at
31 March 2015, the Group did not have any bank overdraft
(2014: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

There was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 March 2015.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s transactions during the Year were mainly
denominated in Renminbi, HK Dollars and US Dallars. Risk on
exposure to fluctuation in exchange rates was insignificant to
the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had 168 (2014: 176) staff
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and Hong Kong. Total
staff costs including directors’ remuneration were approximately
HK$20.5 million during the Year (2014: HK$24.2 million), in
which approximately HK$4.8 million was share-based payments
to Directors (2014: HK$10.3 million).

Remuneration is determined with reference to market terms
and the performance, qualification and experience of individual
employee. Year-end bonus based on individual performance will
be paid to employees as recognition of and reward for their
contributions. Other benefits include contributions to statutory
mandatory provident fund scheme to its employees. During the
Year, total 27.0 million share options have been granted to
certain Directors (2014: 127.0 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (2014: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of capital commitments are stated in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Details of operating lease commitments are stated in note 31
to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

OUTLOOK

Owing to the booming development of the film industry in the
PRC, the Group will continue to grasp other business
opportunities in investments in this industry in the PRC.
Meanwhile, the Group will put more focus onto locating other
business opportunities with enormous potentials, including online
games developing and operating businesses, and investments in
China cultural industry. The Board believes that the Group’s
existing businesses can create a synergistic effect with the
above-mentioned new businesses and will benefit the Group in
the future.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
extend my sincere gratitude to all our shareholders, investors
and business partners for their continued support and
confidence in the Group. | would also like to thank my fellow
Directors and senior management team who have offered
invaluable advice and leadership during such a challenging year
and the management team and all staff for their dedication,
loyalty and valued services.

For and on behalf of the Board

Chan Cheong Yee
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 19 June 2015
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFRBERTHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chiau Sing Chi — Mr. Chiau has over 25 years of
performance and management experience in the movie industry.
Mr. Chiau has been a leading icon of the movie and
entertainment industry in the Greater China Region for over 25
years, and had received numerous awards in the industry,
including best supporting actor, best actor and best director
awards presented by leading film academies. Mr. Chiau joined
the Group in June 2010.

Mr. Chiau is a brother of Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly, an executive
Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly — Ms. Chow was appointed as an
executive Director in January 2014. Ms. Chow has over 15
years’ ample experience in movie production and distribution as
well as licensing businesses. She is currently directors of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Chow is a sister of Mr. Chiau Sing Chi, an executive
Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee — Mr. Chan joined the Group in August
2007. He is one of the responsible officers of China Everbright
Securities (HK) Limited. Mr. Chan is currently a licensed person
to carry out type 1 (dealing in securities), type 2 (dealing in
futures contracts), type 3 (leveraged foreign exchange trading)
and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the
SFO. Mr. Chan obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from the
College of Business Administration of the University of South
Florida in the United States of America. Mr. Chan is experienced
in dealing in securities, fund management, corporate
management, corporate finance and managing listed investment
companies under Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules of Hong Kong
Stock Exchanges.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFRBERTHE

Since June 2003, Mr. Chan joined China Innovation Investment
Limited (stock code: 1217), an investment company listed on
the Stock Exchange, as executive director. Mr. Chan was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of Agritrade
Resources Limited (stock code: 1131), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, in June 2010. Mr. Chan was appointed as an
executive director of China Investment and Finance Group
Limited (stock code: 1226), an investment company listed on
the Stock Exchange, in March 2011. Mr. Chan was appointed
as an executive director of China Investment Development
Limited (stock code: 204), an investment company listed on the
Stock Exchange, in May 2012. Mr. Chan was appointed as an
executive director of Capital VC Limited (stock code: 2324), an
investment company listed on the Stock Exchange, in November
2012. Mr. Chan was appointed as an executive director of
Alpha Returns Group PLC, an investment company listed on AIM
of London Stock Exchange, in May 2013. Mr. Chan was also
appointed as an executive director of China New Economy Fund
Limited (stock code: 80), an investment company listed on the
Stock Exchange, in June 2013.

Mr. Chong Lee Chang — Mr. Chong is a Malaysian, graduated
with a BA (honours) degree in law from the Manchester
Metropolitan University (formerly known as Manchester
Polytechnic) in 1982. He was admitted to the Honourable
Society of Lincoln’s Inn, London, in 1982 and was called to the
Bar as a barrister at law in 1983. In 1984, he was admitted as
an advocate and solicitor of the High Court of Malaya and has
held a legal practicing certificate to practice law in Malaysia until
31 December 2013. Mr. Chong has more than 20 years of
experience in legal practice in Malaysia. Mr. Chong was a senior
partner of a Kuala Lumpur based law firm, Messrs. LC Chong &
Co. His legal experience has included advising various companies
from Asia and United Kingdom, including steel millers from
China. He has served as an executive director of Antah Holdings
Berhad, a public company listed on the main board of Bursa
Malaysia and also held directorship in Permanis Sdn. Bhd., the
Malaysian franchise holder and bottler of Pepsi-Cola and Seven-
eleven stores. During the period from May 2005 to February
2009, he had also served as a non-executive director of
Midwest Corporation Limited, a public company that was
previously listed on the Australian Stock Exchange, which was
engaged in mining, exploring and processing iron ore. Mr.
Chong resigned from Midwest Corporation Limited after the
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company was delisted on the Australian Stock Exchange. Mr.
Chong was a director of JW Carpenter Limited (“JWC”), a
private limited company incorporated in the United Kingdom with
its main business as home furniture and furnishing retail chain
stores. JWC has been applied for a Company Voluntary
Administration in October 2000, a scheme of arrangement was
later entered into between JWC and its creditors, and
subsequently the scheme of arrangement has been approved by
court in March 2001. Mr. Chong joined the board of JWC to
lead the rescue exercise since mid 2000. Under the
management of Mr. Chong and the other board of directors of
JWC, JWC thereafter turned into profit making in June 2002.
Mr. Chong resigned his directorship from JWC in May 2004
after the acquisition of JWC by an Australian public listed
company. Mr. Chong is also an independent non-executive
director of Agritrade Resources Limited (stock code: 1131)
since June 2010 and was an independent non-executive director
of Ding He Mining Holdings Limited (stock code: 705, formerly
known as CVM Minerals Limited] up to 23 July 2014. Both
Agritrade Resources Limited and Ding He Mining Holdings
Limited are listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. In January 2010, Mr. Chong joined EITA
Resources Berhad, a company listed on the main market of
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, as the senior independent
non-executive Director. Mr. Chong joined the Group in March
2009 and had been redesigned as executive Director in
February 2013.

Mpr. Lau Man Kit — Mr. Lau joined the Group in January 2014.
Mr. Lau has over 35 years of extensive sales and marketing
experience in various industries, including property
management, computer technology systems and automobiles,
and has a wide business network in China.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mrs. Chin Chow Chung Hang, Roberta — Mrs. Chin has co-
produced various films with the Golden Harvest Group in the
past. Mrs. Chin holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in English
Literature from Dominican University of California, USA and a
Master’s Degree in Communication — Documentary film from
Stanford University, USA. Mrs. Chin has more than 25 years’
experience in the film production and distribution industry,
including as an interim CEO in the JC Group. Mrs. Chin joined
the Group in May 2010.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Chak Keung — Mr. Wong holds a bachelor degree
in business from The University of Southern Queensland in
Australia. Mr. Wong is also a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia
respectively. Mr. Wong has been in the accounting profession
for over 15 years. Other than having working experience in an
international accounting firm, Mr. Wong had also worked for
listed and other companies engaged in investment, accounting,
educational business, manufacturing, corporate finance and
mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Wong is currently an independent
non-executive director of China Seven Star Holdings Limited
(stock code: 245) which is listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Wong joined the Group in August 2010.

Mr. Chum Kwan Yue Desmond — Mr. Chum graduated from
Oxford University and has been appointed as a portfolio manager
at Claren Road Asset Management, a US based credit hedge
fund since 2009. Prior to joining Claren Road Asset
Management, Mr. Chum had worked as a managing director at
Citigroup for 12 years and helped to build its fixed income
franchise in Asia. Mr. Chum oversaw a team of investment
professionals and ran the Global Special Situations Group’s
investment activities in the Greater China Region. Mr. Chum has
extensive experience in sourcing, evaluating and executing
private equity and real estate investments in the Greater China
Region. Mr. Chum is an independent non-executive director of
Kader Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 180). Mr. Chum
joined the Group in August 2010.

Ms. Choi Mei Ping — Ms. Choi has approximately 20 years’
ample marketing experience in the airline industry. She is
currently working in an international airline company. She has
joined the Group in November 2014.
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OVERVIEW

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in this annual report for the year ended 31 March
2015. The Company is concerned to have high standards of
corporate governance. It is important because the Board
believes that good quality corporate governance would assist the
management to monitor the Company’s business activities
effectively and thus interests of the shareholders of the

Company will be well protected.

The Company has applied the principles in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report contained
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules (the “Code”). The
Company is in compliance with the mandatory Code provisions,
save for the deviations discussed below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year. The
Company has also made specific enquiry to all Directors and,
the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the
required standard of dealing and its code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
Board of Directors

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising the Company’s business and affairs. The ultimate
responsibility for the day to day management, administration
and operation of the Company is delegated to the executive
Directors and the senior management of the Company. In
practice, the Board takes responsibilities for decision making in
all major matters of the Company. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into
by the Group and the Board has the full support of them to
discharge its responsibilities.
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Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report
are set out on pages 12 to 15 of this annual report. Given the
composition of the Board and the skills, knowledge and expertise
of the Directors, the Board believes that it is appropriately
structured to provide sufficient checks and balances to protect
the interests of the Group and the shareholders. The Board will
review its composition regularly to ensure that it has the
appropriate balance of expertise, skills and experience to
continue to effectively oversee the business of the Company.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board
of Directors on recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee with the reference to their respective duties and
responsibility with the Company, the Company’'s performance
and current market situation. Details of emoluments of the
Directors for the year are disclosed in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises nine
Directors, including five executive Directors, namely Mr. Chiau
Sing Chi, Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly, Mr. Chan Cheong Yee, Mr.
Chong Lee Chang and Mr. Lau Man Kit; one non-executive
Director, namely Mrs. Chin Chow Chung Hang Roberta; and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong
Chak Keung, Mr. Chum Kwan Yue Desmond and Ms. Choi Mei
Ping. Mr. Chiau Sing Chi and Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly are
siblings. Save as disclosed, the Board members have no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship(s) with each other.

Independent Non-executive Directors have confirmed in writing
their independence from the Company in accordance with the
guidelines on director independence of the GEM Listing Rules.
On this basis, the Company considers all such Directors to be
independent.

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the
Company Secretary continuously updates all Directors on latest
developments regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance of the
same by all Directors. All Directors are encouraged to attend
external forum or training courses on relevant topics which may
count towards Continuous Professional Development training.
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Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5, Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. During
the Year, all Directors have participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities either by
attending training courses or by reading materials relevant to
the Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions
taken against Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

The number of Board Meetings, Committee Meetings and
General Meetings attended by each Director during the year
under review is set out in the following table. Figure in brackets
indicates maximum number of meetings in the period in which
the individual was a Board Member or Committee Member (as
the case may be).

RIFTRMRXEABLIG  EFE2EGESR
FRR BRUSDEMBLIEE - UHERE
HEZSFHABRUAMBHER - RAF
B 2RBEFHEBLFEIREXHERL
AXGREERELBERBEN Z A2 A
BEZBEEXEREIED -

ARFIREHEE 2 B RERMETER
B EEEBRSREEERCREDTEL
HUEERBAME DERFDRI - RRF
B RS FR -

REBEFER SEELFEFESSH  Z8
SERLBRRAGZRBEN TR - EHRAZ
BFEEEALTREFTENEXRZEGNE
(BFERME) BEAMBITZHEEHR
e

Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual

Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Directors Notes Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting
g0 s E2g88E FNZEGEE FMWZEES8E REZEEE; BRREAFAE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi AEMEE 2/(13) N/ATER N/AT R N/ATEA 0/
Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly Ehe 2 e 11/(13) N/ATEH 3/(3) N/ATER 0/(1)
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee REZERE 11/(13) N/ATER N/ATEF N/ATER o/
Mr. Chong Lee Chang RERLE 10/(13) N/ATE N/ATE 2/(2) 1/01)
Mr. Lau Man Kit B S 8/(13) N/ATER N/ATEF N/AZE A 0/Mm
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mrs. Chin Chou Chung Hang, Roberta PR 12/(13) N/ATNER N/ATER N/ATER 1/(1)
Independent non-executive Directors BUYFHTES
Mrs. Chen Chou Mei Mei Vivien Yl 6 v 1 5/17) 1/(2) /1) 1/ 0/(1)
Mr. Wong Chak Keung BEREE 11/013) 5/(5) 3/(3) 2/(2) /1)
Mr. Chum Kwan Yue Desmond GEMEE 8/(13) 4/(5) 1/(3) 2/(2) 0/(1)
Ms. Chai Mei Ping BEFRt 2 3/(4) 1/01) 1/01) N/ATER N/ATE
Note 1: retired on 15 August 2014, HiaE1: RZZT—NFNATARARE-
Note 2: appointed on 14 November 2014. Mae: RZZTE—NF+—A+HAERE-
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to the Provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the
chairman and the chief executive officer should be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the chairman and the chief executive
officer should be clearly established and set out in writing. The
Board is in the process of locating an appropriate person to fill
the vacancy of the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company as soon as practicable.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF THE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Provision A.4.1 of the Code, the non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election.

The non-executive Director and all independent non-executive
Directors are not appointed for a specific term, but they are
subject to re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Articles.

In accordance with the Articles of the Association of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years.

CHAIRMAN OF NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the Provision A.5.1 of the Code, the nomination
committee should be chaired by the chairman of the board or
an independent non-executive director. The Chairman of the
Company’s Nomination Committee is Mr. Chong Lee Chang,
who is an executive Director but not the Chairman of the Board.

As mentioned in the section “Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer” above, the Board is in the process of locating
appropriate persons to fill the vacancies of the chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company as soon as practicable.
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ATTENDANCE IN GENERAL MEETINGS

Pursuant to Provision A.6.7 of the Code, independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should
attend general meetings. Certain independent non-executive
Directors could not attend the annual general meeting held in
the year ended 31 March 2015 due to other business
commitments.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by
the Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference
adopted by the Board, which include (a) to develop and review
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and make recommendations; (b) to review and monitor the
training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management of the Group; (c) to review
and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review
and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e)
to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

The Board had reviewed and discussed the corporate
governance policy of the Group and was satisfied with the
effectiveness of its corporate governance policy.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements which give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their financial
reporting are set out in the independent auditor’'s report
attached to the Company’'s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2015 set out in this report.

ANNUAL REPORT F#
2014/15

HEKRRXE

RIBTEMEEAB. 75 BIUIFRTEER
HMFFHITEETREERRARE - BT HUF
HITEFHNAREEMER  #URBEHFER
E_T-RAFZA=T-HLEFERBITZR
RBFRE -

ARRZEEERBERBEZTSMHEA—F
JIEEBREEHMESTERET ETEE()
HE Mama N A B R EEARK LB O IRH
HERR DR LEEAEEEERSR
BHEZBILRFEEXEER - (C)ra k&
BARRETAEZMEERE ZBRLED
(AFE B REEERRASEREERE
EZBRTTARERTHIE) « Rle)®E
ARRIREETTUREEEAREZHES
I8 o

EERORIRIRAREZ CRTANE
MR REABETZHH -

EFEREEH

EFRANEHARERHEITRRAEEEERF
MR EARBRE - EFLTHNEER
ERAEARFTFELLRNBRNEAREZE
HRIBNBEBIERTHARE -

SNEAZBREN B R F 2 IS R BN A
SREARBABE_Z-—RF=_A=t—H8B1
FEZERAWEMERN 2 B AZ BN RS



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELWE

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Ka Yin was appointed as the company secretary on 1
November 2013. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. He reports to the executive
Directors of the Company and assists the Board in functioning
effectively and efficiently. During the year, Mr. Chan undertook
over 15 hours of professional training to update his skill and
knowledge.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of
reference. The committee comprises all independent non
executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Chak Keung (Chairman),
Mr. Chum Kwan Yue Desmond, Ms. Choi Mei Ping (appointed
on 14 November 2014) and Mrs. Chen Chou Mei Mei Vivien
(resigned on 15 August 2014), and one executive Director, Ms.
Chow Man Ki Kelly.

The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include (a)
to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy; (b) to
review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;
and (c) to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of executive Directors, non-executive Directors,
and senior management, and to review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of
Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate.

The primary goal of the remuneration on executive remuneration
packages is to enable the Group to mativate executive Directors
and senior management by linking their remuneration with
reference to the Group’s operation results, which reference to
individual performances and comparable market statistics.

The principal elements of the Group’s executive remuneration
package include basic salary, discretionary bonus, and share
options.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”) with specific written terms of
reference.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises four members:
one executive Director, Mr. Chong Lee Chang (Chairman), and
all independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. \WWong Chak
Keung, Mr. Chum Kwan Yue Desmond, Ms. Choi Mei Ping
(appointed on 14 November 2014) and Mrs. Chen Chou Mei
Mei Vivien (resigned on 15 August 2014).

The responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on selection of individual nominated for directorships;
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for
directors; and determining the policy for nomination of
Directors. The Nomination Committee has specific written
terms of reference which are of no less exacting terms than
those stipulated in Code provisions.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of
the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to review the Company’s annual report and
accounts, interim report and quarterly reports and to provide
advices and comments thereon to the Board. The Audit
Committee will also be responsible for reviewing and supervising
the Company’s financial reporting and internal control system.

The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Chak Keung (Chairman), Mr. Chum
Kwan Yue Desmond, Ms. Choi Mei Ping (appointed on 14
November 2014) and Mrs. Chen Chou Mei Mei Vivien (resigned
on 15 August 2014). During these meetings, the Audit
Committee reviewed the annual, interim and quarterly results of
the Company and made recommendations to the Board and the
management in respect of the Company’s financial reporting and
internal control system.
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Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 31 March 2015, the Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements of the
Company on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditor on financial reporting
are set out in the Independent Auditor's Report attached to the
Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2015.

The Board has regularly reviewed the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control system with an aim to safeguard the
shareholders’ interests and the Company’'s assets. The purpose
is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatements, errors, losses or fraud, and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in achieving the Company’s
business objectives.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2015, fee for the Company’s
external auditor for audit services was HK$700,000. There is
no other fee paid and payable to the external auditor for non-
audit services during the year ended 31 March 2015.

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’'s
Report” on pages 38 to 39.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting and to put forward proposal at general
meetings

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the
Company, the Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary
general meetings. Any one or more shareholders of the
Company holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Pursuant to Article 85 of the articles of association of the
Company, no person other than a Director retiring at the
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless a written notice (unless otherwise specifically
stated and as further defined in the articles of association of the
Company]) (the “Natice”) signed by a shareholder of the Company
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend
and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his
intention to propose such person for election and also a Notice
signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be
elected shall have been lodged at the head office of the Company
or at the Hong Kong branch share registrar of the Company
provided that the minimum length of the period, during which
such Notice(s) are given, shall be at least seven (7) days and
that (if the Notices are submitted after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election) the
period for lodgment of such Notice(s) shall commence on the
day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven (7) days
prior to the date of such general meeting.
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Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns
to the Company, for the attention of the Board of Directors, by
email: info@bingogroup.com.hk, or mail to Room 102-4, 1/F
Sea Bird House, 22-28 Wyndham Street, Central, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

Investor Relations and Communication

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications
with all shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining a
high level of transparency is a key to enhance investor relations.
The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and
investment public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its corporate
publications including quarterly, interim and annual reports and
public announcements. While the annual general meeting
provides a valuable forum for direct communication between the
Board and its shareholders, the Company also maintains its
website to provide an alternative communication channel for the
public and its shareholders. All corporate communication and
Company’s latest updates are available on the Company’s
website for public’s information.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Bingo Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
March 2015 by operating segment is set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2015 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 40 to
44. The Directors of the Company do not recommend the
payment of final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015
(2014: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 144. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Company and the Group during the year are set out in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND CONVERTIBLE
BONDS

Details of movements in either the Company’s convertible bonds,
share capital and share options during the year are set out in
notes 26, 28 and 30 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2015.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the Year are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
assaciation of the Company or the laws of the Cayman Islands.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During in the Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 2.1% of the total sales for the year and sales to
the largest customer included therein amounted to 1.7%.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted to
92.5% of the total cost of sales for the year and purchases
from the largest supplier included therein amounted to 82.2%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’'s issued share
capital had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and/or five largest suppliers during the year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chiau Sing Chi

Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee

Mr. Chong Lee Chang

Mr. Lau Man Kit

Non-executive Director:
Mprs. Chin Chow Chung Hang Raoberta

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Chak Keung

Mr. Chum Kwan Yue Desmond

Ms. Choi Mei Ping (appointed on 14 November 2014)

Mprs. Chen Chou Mei Mei Vivien (retired on 15 August 2014)

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Ms. Choi Mei Ping
shall retire in accordance with Article 83(3) of the Company’s
articles of association, while Mr. Chan Cheong Yee, Mr. Chong
Lee Chang and Mr. Chum Kwan Yue Desmond shall retire by
rotation in accordance with Article 84(1). In addition to Mr.
Chong Lee Chang, who has decided not to stand for re-election,
all of the other retiring Directors being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election thereat.

The Company confirmed that it has received from each of its
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on Growth Enterprise Market of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
for the year ended 31 March 2015 and it still considered them
to be independent as the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 36, none of the Directors has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements, no
other contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, any of the subsidiaries or its
holding company was a party and in which any Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at the time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2015, the following Directors of the Company
had or were deemed to have interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) (i) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to herein; or (iii) which were, pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by the
Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

(a) Long positions in the shares of the Company

EFRERTHRARRKGRHEM
BRifZESZRKRE

RZZF—RF=ZA=1t—H " MIARAEF
RARAREEBZE(EEREBENS
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7 X80 EAME AR A K B 22 P 2 MR BOR
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7 K BB 15 1) 56 352 R A RC A % R Pt & 5
Mz mgoR A ¢ k(i) RIFAIE R -3 A
FH5A4BEL 67 HEMEFETESFRSZ
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(a) RELXFRGBZHA

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

capital of
the Company
Number of PN
Name of Directors Nature of interest Shares held ERITRAE
Y EatE FEROHBE BABED
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee Beneficial owner 5,000 0.00%
REELE BERFEAA
Mr. Chong Lee Chang (Note 1) Beneficial owner 8,065,976 0.25%
REAREE (M) EmEAA
Corporate interests 37,250,023 1.16%
EE R
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi (Note 2) Held by trust 1,608,484,963 50.06%
EESE 4 (Hat2) RIEERHAE
Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly (Note 2] Held by trust 1,608,484,963 50.06%
B3R 2+ (et 2) B{EFEHA
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(b)

Notes:

Mr. Chong Lee Chang, an Executive Director of the Company, had
personally owned 8,065,976 Shares and were deemed to be
interested in 37,250,023 shares through his beneficial interest in
the entire issued share capital of Shieldman Limited.

2. These shares are registered in the name of Beglobal Investments
Limited and Golden Treasure Investments Limited. Beglobal
Investments Limited and Golden Treasure Investments Limited are
companies indirectly owned by the trust, the discretionary objects of
which are Mr. Chiau, Ms. Chow and their family.

3. The total number of the issued share capital of the Company as at
31 March 2015 was 3,212,944,562.

Long positions in the underlying shares of the

Company

The Company adopted a share options scheme on 15

Augu
offer

st 2012 which the Board may, at their discretion,
employees, Directors, or any other persons who have

contributed to the Group to take up share options to

subscribe for shares subject to the terms and conditions

stipul

ated in the share option scheme.

(b)
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A Shieldman Limited 2 &0 2 2 17 i A& 2 1
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2. #Z %% 1 Ty LABeglobal Investments Limited
J Golden Treasure Investments Limited 2
% # & i ° Beglobal Investments Limited
% Golden Treasure Investments Limited 5
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Details of the share options granted to the Directors under

the Schemes and any other schemes and movements in

such holdings during the year were as follows:

RAFE - ZEr 8 M E T 8I1E

Number of
options Number of

Number of ~ Number of ~ Number of cancelled/ options
options options options lapsed held as at
held as at granted exercised during 31 March
1 April 2014 during during the Year 2015
RZB-M% the Year the Year Er  R-B-1%
Name of Directors Option type MA-AFE  ERBEZ  EREZ  E#/4%2z  ZA=t-8
Espg BRERR BREHE BREHE BRES A BREHE FisBREHE
(Note 1)
(B 1)
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi 2012A 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
AR 20138 125,000,000 - - - 125,000,000
2014A - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly 2014A - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
BAXELt
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee 2012A 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000
REZEHE 2014A - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Mr. Chong Lee Chang 2012A 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
RRREE 2013A 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
2014A - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Mr. Lau Man Kit 2014A - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
S
Mrs. Chin Chow Chung Hang Roberta 2012A 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
REELTL 2014A - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Mrs. Chen Chou Mei Mei Vivien (Note 2] 2012A 250,000 - (250,000) - -
REMBELL (HH2) 2014A - 3,000,000 - (3,000,000 -
Mr. Chum Kwan Yue Desmand 2012A 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
DEmEE 2014A - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Mr. Wang Chak Keung 2012A 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
EERLE 2014A - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Total @zt 157,250,000 27,000,000 (250,000)  (3,000,000) 181,000,000

Note 1: Details of specific categories of share options are disclosed in
note 36 to the financial statements.

Note 2: Retired on 15 August 2014.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of
the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
or was deemed to have any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFQ), (i) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii)
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii)
which were, pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by
Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as known to the Directors, as at 31 March 2015, the
following persons (not being Directors or chief executive of the
Company) had, or was deemed to have, interests or short in the
shares or underlying shares (i) which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or (ii) who is expected,
directly and indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group
or (iii) which were required, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein:

BREXRBEEN R_F—-—HF=H
=t—H ARFEFHARTHAER
BENAR R RERBEE (EERES
KEIEIGRPIEXVER) 2 Bty - B R G
HEHF BAIRREEB (VREE
FMHEEAEXVEE7 X80 HAM
SARRA BT AR R (B
R EFREE SRR RDE BRSO
BRI HEA 2D IORR) ¢ (i)
WRIEE 7 KR 1R 352 1R AR A
fiR Pt B ROt 2 (M as SR A + S (iii)
RIFAIER ETRBIFS5.46E£5.67 &%
EREFETESFXHZAEAMNER
NE MR P2 E RSO R o

FERR H A LB 15 B R
BRfnziga

HREFMH R-E—AF=A=1+—H A
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Long position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

Name of Shareholder

BR A

RAERTRH REBERD TR

Approximate

percentage of

issued share

capital of

Number of the Company
Shares held EARARE T
FERHEE BREBYOED

Sinostar FE (PTC) Limited (Note 1)(fts:1)

Treasure Offshore Holdings Limited (Note 1)(Kfa£ 1)
Beglobal Investments Limited (Note 2)(#fzF2)

Golden Treasure Global Investment Limited (Note 2)(ff1:2)

Note:

1. Mr. Chiau Sing Chi, Ms. Chow Man Ki, Kelly and their family are the
beneficiaries of a discretionary trust of which Sinostar FE (PTC) Limited
(“Sinostar”) is the trustee. Sinostar as the trustee of the discretionary trust
is the sole shareholder of Treasure Offshore Holdings Limited, which is the
sole shareholder of Beglobal Investments Limited.

2. Beglobal Investments Limited directly holds 1,318,484,963 shares of the
Company (representing approximately 41.03% of the issued share capital
of the Company) and indirectly holds 290,000,000 shares of the Company
(representing approximately 9.03% of the issued share capital of the
Company) through Golden Treasure Global Investment Limited as at 31
March 2015.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted pursuant to
written resolutions passed on 139 October 2002 (the “Scheme
A”") for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors,
eligible employees and participants who have contributed to the
Group, and has expired on 12 November 2012. Pursuant to
resolution passed on 15 August 2012, a new share option
scheme (the “Scheme B”) was adopted under the same
conditions of the original scheme and will expire on 14 August
2022. Under Schemes A and B (collectively, the “Schemes”),
the board of directors of the Company may grant options to full-
time or parttime employees including directors (executive and
non-executive) and any advisor, consultant, supplier, distributor,
contractor, agent, business partner, promoter, service provider
or customer of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, to
subscribe for share in the Company.

Details of the share options granted under the Schemes and
any other schemes and movements in such holdings during the
Year were as follow:

fRRz st &

RE-_FT_FTATNLABBZERRZ
& ARBRMEBRAETE (TRHEAD > £
ZEHNRBBES aEREENRERAKH
FHhERc28E  BRAEENR_F—=F
t—A+ZHE®m RER-_F——F/\A
THEBBRESR  ARAREBEERBE
MRz G R ERE 8 ([5181B)) - &
At BN —E - —F \ATmAER - RIE
AEIAKB (% [ZFrTEl)) ARARESE
A AR R RS EAEA KB QR 2 2B R R
8 BRNTEERITESE RERER - &R
A HIER - DR ABR - KR XBE
o BREA REEERSFEPE L BEE
ARBA DRI ©

il

AR - S B RAE A A BB T
2R RS BT

Number of
options Number of
Number of Number of Number of cancelled/ options
options options options lapsed held as at
held as at granted exercised during 31 March
1 April 2014 during during the Year 2015
R-Z—NmF the Year the Year FREH R=Z—HF
Category Option type mMA—H FRAB/EZ FRITEZ Kz =BA=+—-8
<l BB AR SR FREBRERE BREHE BRERE BREZE FAEBREZE
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
T T T T F15
Directors & 5 2012A 30,250 - (250) - 30,000
2013A 2,000 - - - 2,000
2013B 125,000 - - - 125,000
2014A - 27,000 - (3,000 24,000
Employees & 8 2012A 10,000 - - - 10,000
Advisors & 20118 9,000 - - - 9,000
2012A 220,800 - (130,500) - 90,300
2014A - 277,140 - - 277,140
Total &5 397,050 304,140 (130,750) (3.000) 567,440

Note: Details of specific categories of share options are disclosed in note 36 to
the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “DIRECTORS’ AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES” and “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME” above, none of the Directors or employees of the
Group or their associates were granted by the Company or its
subsidiaries the rights to acquire shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate, or had exercised any
such rights as at 31 March 2015.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Saved as disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements, no
other connected transactions (including continuing connected
transactions) were entered into by the Group under the GEM
Listing Rules.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors, the management shareholders or the
substantial shareholders of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group or
has any other conflict of interest with the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the reporting period of the Group are
set out in note 37 to the financial statements.
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AUDITORS

Graham H.Y Chan & Co., who acted as auditor of the Company
for the two years ended 31 March 2013, resigned on 4 April
2014. Cheng & Cheng Limited was subsequently appointed as
auditor of the Company on 16 April 2014.

The consolidated financial statements for the years ended 371
March 2015 and 2014 have been audited by Cheng & Cheng
Limited. Cheng & Cheng Limited will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Cheng & Cheng Limited as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Cheong Yee
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 19 June 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB Eh R

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
@CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

WO g w oMOF OB R F R A
10/F., Allied Kajima Building,

138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability]

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bingo
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 40
to 143, which comprise the consolidated and Company’s
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2015, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body and for no other purpose. \We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’'s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2015 and of the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Cheng & Cheng Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chan Shek Chi

Practising Certificate number PO5540

Hong Kong, 19 June 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

iR

viv = §§

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

2015 2014
—E2-HF —=THF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hta FHER FHET
Continuing operations BHELSEER
Turnover = 6 76,961 80,447
Cost of sales SHERA (32,818) (36,085)
Gross profit EF 44,143 44,362
Other revenue and other net income U o B EADF A 7 4,322 4,210
Selling expenses HEMX (1,850]) (984)
Administrative expenses T (49,177) (47,005)
Share-based payments VAR B EME 2 3R 36 (46,076) (10,332)
Impairment losses REEE g (8,591) (38,2869])
Finance costs RUE A 8 (2,908) (2,440)
Loss before taxation BREATE 1B g (60,137) (50,438)
Taxation IiE 12 (2,839) (3,376)
Loss for the year from FEBISEER 2 NER
continuing operations B8 (62,976) (53,834)
Discontinued operation BRIEREEL
Loss for the year from discontinued BRI EEB 2 AFE
operation =g 27 - (12)
Loss for the year AREEEE (62,976) (53,848)
Loss attributable to: FEALEE -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ =N (65,947) (59,464)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR M 5 2,971 5,618
(62,976) (53,8486)
HK cents HK cents
7l AL
Loss per share BREE 15
From continuing and discontinued REFERCRIEREEE
operations
Basic HAR (2.06) (1.94)
Diluted s N/ATER N/ATEA
From continuing operations REFEKEEY
Basic HAR (2.06) (1.94)
Diluted i3 N/ATEA N/ATEA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AaRtZEkRR

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-hHfF —ET—mF
HK$'000 HK$' 000

FET FET
Loss for the year KEEEE (62,976) (53,8486)
Other comprehensive income Hih 2w
Item that may be reclassified R EF o EEBm o HE -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating HEGINETFEE 2
foreign operations M =5
— Exchange differences arising —ANFEEEEIEREZRE
during the year 61 24
Other comprehensive income RNEEH A 2 E WA -
for the year, net of tax BB 61 24
Total comprehensive loss AEEXHEBGEARHE
for the year (62,915) (53,822)
Total comprehensive loss EEEEERARE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company AKREEB A (65,896) (59,451)
Non-controlling interests SEEAR T 2,981 5,629

(62,915) (53,822)

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
teEEEZERERAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FeMEGIKAERE
PR

2015 2014
—E-hHfF —ET—mF
Notes HK$'000 HK$' 000

Kt st FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NRE 16 37,856 46,484
Goodwill S 17 950 950
38,806 47,434
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Trade receivables FE W BR FX 19 3,831 11,435
Other receivables, deposits and HEMERERIE - RS RIEFRIE
prepayments 20 17,370 19,187
Payments to parties for procurement — FEIRE 0t £/ A& T2 FUB
for investment of cinema business 21 47,010 49,204
Films in progress and film rights B L BHRE 22 2,473 5,246
Tax recoverable A eI 4 -
Cash and cash equivalents HEMBEEEED 23 128,974 106,000
199,662 191,072
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables FEITBRFK 24 2,141 1,730
Deposits received, other payables and B Yigs « B ERZIER
accruals et FRIE 25 71,700 79,852
Tax payables FEIRLIE 2,101 2,220
75,942 83,802
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 123,720 107,270
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERABERRBAR
LIABILITIES 162,526 154,704
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FeMEGIKAERE
*or gt

2015 2014
—E-hHfF —ET—mF
Notes HK$'000 HK$' 000

Mt FET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBER
Convertible bonds IR E S 26 19,331 16,379
NET ASSETS EEZFE 143,195 138,325
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B &
Share capital R& A 28 128,518 123,288
Reserves wEE 5,237 9,935
133,755 133,223
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR HE 2 9,440 5,102
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 143,195 138,325

The consolidated financial statements on pages 40 to 143 were HEAREFA0BEE 143 B 2 BB HRERER

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on TE-RAFANATNBEEZESSHAERRET
19 June 2015 and are signed on its behalf by: B WHTNINEERRESE
Chan Cheong Yee Lau Man Kit
RE= Eprgs
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EFE EFE

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED w
teEEEZERERAR



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MBI RBER
At 31 March 2015
R-ZFE-—AF=H=1—H

2015 2014
—E-RF —Z—OF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
MfaE FHET FHT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NMRE 16 93 150
Interests in subsidiaries N IENGIPR o 18 263,258 262,287
263,351 262,437
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other receivables, deposits and H I EIE - 51
prepayments NI RRIB 20 807 1,289
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY 23 8,607 4,107
9,414 5,396
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals HAth FEASH F0E M FEET A 25 3,422 4,147
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHT B A T30 18 145,422 145,450
148,844 149,597
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REEEFHE (139,430) (144,201)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERBERRBAR
LIABILITIES 123,921 118,236
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBEME
Convertible bonds Al E S 26 19,331 16,379
NET ASSETS EEFRE 104,590 101,857
CAPITAL AND RESERVES IR R (&1
Share capital (N 28 128,518 123,288
Reserves i 29 (23,928) (21,431)
TOTAL EQUITY fERBE 104,580 101,857
Chan Cheong Yee Lau Man Kit
REZ® 234k
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
S 3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FeEaERR

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
2 E—AF=H=1—HIFE

Equity Attributable
component to owners
of convertible Share of the Non-
Share Share  Contributed honds options Exchange  Accumulated Company  controlling
capital ~ premium surplus ERES reserve reserve losses K27 interests Total
iz RitEE B&EH BRds  BREGE EiGE ZiER  AEAEE  FERER a3t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Fhn TR Thn Thn Tk Fin Fin T Thn Thn
At 1 April 2013 HZF-=FMmA-A 122456 331,580 3930 110353 75,884 (675)  (464,708) 179,425 (527) 178,838
(Loss)/proft: for the year REE(FE)/ %7 - - - - - - (59,464) (59,464) 5,618 (53,846)
Other comprehensive income for the year  AFE 2t 2ENE - - - - - 13 - 13 il 24
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ AEE2ABEEE - - - - - 13 (59,464) (59,451) 5,629 (53,822)
Issue of convertible bonds BaRRES - - - 3,896 - - - 3,89 - 3,896
Issue of new shares of HK80.04 each  IREREMIE: 8%
under share option scheme SHREROAATZHRS 832 4,027 - - (1616) - - 3,243 - 3,243
Equity settled share option arrangement  LlER%E 7 BRERH - - - - 6110 - - 6,110 - 6,110
Lapse of share options BIRERR - - - - (51,692) - 51,692 - - -
At 31 March 2014 RZF-BE=A=1-8 123288 335,607 3930 114,249 28,686 (662)  (471.875) 133223 5102 138325
(Loss)/proft: for the year REE(BE) /47 - - - - - - (65,947) (65,947) 2,97 (62,976)
Other comprehensive income for the year  AFE £t 2ENE - - - - - 51 - 51 10 61
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEELABELE - - - - - 51 (65,947) (65,896) 2,981 (62,915)
Issue of convertible bonds BATRRES - - - 532 - - - 532 - 532
Issue of new shares of HK$0.04 each  IREB R
under share option scheme BREB04ETZHRN 5,230 25,332 - - (10,166) - - 20,396 - 20,396
Equity settled share option arrangement  JER4E 7 BRERH - - - - 45,500 - - 45,500 - 45,500
Lapse of share options BREST - - - - (448) - 448 - - -
Contribution from non-controling interests 3R ER 2 - - - - - - - - 1,357 1,357
At 31 March 2015 RZF-RE=A=1-8 128,518 360,939 3,930 114,781 63,572 (611)  (537,374) 133,755 9,440 143,195

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ke EEZERBRAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= A, s =
FETERER
For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

2015 2014
=B-—HF _—TNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHEEZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss for the year REEEIE (62,976) (53,846)
Adjustments for: KHRBATEIE
Income tax expenses Frisfisz 2,839 3,376
Finance costs recognised in profit RERERZBE KA
or loss 2,908 2,440
Interest income FEHA (2059) (80)
Depreciation e 9,609 9,174
Impairment loss on goodwill R 2 R EE R - 8,295
Impairment loss on trade receivables RN R 2 BB & 18 7,489 10,090
Impairment loss on films in progress EREY RETMIE
and film rights 2 REEE 1,102 19,884
Amortization of film rights BRI 5 - 717
Fixed assets written off WS E A B 634 -
Share-based payments VARRAD B 2 2 15F 3R 46,076 10,332
Operating cash flows before working EEESEHAI 2K
capital changes Beng 7,476 10,382
Decrease in trade receivables JFE W BR R > 115 9,627
Decrease in other receivables, HAbEWFIE - e Rk
deposits and prepayments TR RIER A 1,817 4
Decrease/(Increase) in films in progress & EF LK EFRIERD
and film rights (3% ) 1,671 (913)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables — FEfBRFUL 10, GRi2>) 411 (581)
Decrease in deposits received, Bl S « EfthEfHRIE K&
other payables and accruals JE ST RRIE R A (8,152) (19.,848)
CASH GENERATED FROM/ EEME(FTRARE
(USED IN) OPERATION 3,338 (1,329)
Tax paid EAIHIA (2,962) (3,489)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ REEKRRE(FTA)
(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES ZEEHEE 376 (4,818)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERSRESR
s

2015 2014
—E-hHfF —ET—mF
Notes HK$'000 HK$' 000

MtaF F#ExT FET

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHZRERE

ACTIVITIES
Repayment from parties for procurement FtE I8 E EK RS

for investment of cinema business ez ZIR 2,194 1,854
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE  HENMERE

equipment (1,571) (2,578)
Interests received BUF & 205 80
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ RETERE (A2

(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES HEFEE 828 (644)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHZHERE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from shares issued under R EIZRTIR D 2

share option scheme FriS 5008 20,396 3,243
Contribution from non-controlling IR ST E

interests 1,357 -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM METEME2RESFE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 21,753 3,243
INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH HeERBESSEWEMGRD)

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22,957 (2,219)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FUOZEERESEEY

THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 106,000 108,696
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  H\E[E R &) 7 /£ 17 (477)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRESRESEEY

THE END OF THE YEAR 23 128,974 106,000

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ﬂ
teEEEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’'s subsidiaries are
set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

The registered office of the Company is located at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands and the head office and
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is
located at Room 102-104, 1st Floor, Sea Bird House,
22-28 Wyndham Street, Central, Hong Kong. The
Company has its primary listing on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The directors of the Company consider the
Company’s ultimate holding company to be Beglobal
Investments Limited, a limited liability company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of The Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below. These consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under historical cost
convention except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair value, as explained in the
accounting policies set out in annual report.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥5 80 RO EE

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

a) Statement of compliance (Continued)

In the current year, the Group has applied a number
of new and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
that are mandatorily effective for an accounting

period that begins on or after 1 April 2014:

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(as revised in 2011)

HK (IFRIC}Hnterpretation 21

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities
Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets
Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of
Hedge Accounting
Investment Entities

Levies

The application of these new and revised HKFRSs and

new interpretation of HK (IFRIC) has had no material

impact on the Group’s financial performance and

positions for the current and prior years and/or on

the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

a)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The Group has not early adopted the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but not

yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments HKFRS 11

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

ANNUAL REPORT F#

2014/15

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle '

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle '

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle ®

Disclosure Initiative 2

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

Clarification of Acceptable
Methads of Depreciation
and Amortisation 2

Agriculture: Bearer Plants 2

Equity Methad in Separate
Financial Statements 2

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture 2

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consalidation Exemption 2

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations 2
Financial Instruments

Regulatory Deferral Accounts 2

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EEGEEE)

a) Statement of compliance (Continued) a) BEHIBHE)
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 ! RoZE-NFELA—HaZERIAZ
R

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 RZZE-—R"F-A—Bsiz&FHBz
2016 R R

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January e RZB—tF-A—BRZE&FAAZ
2017 4 R I A 2

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 4 R N\F-A—HaZERIAZ
2018 FEHRAER

The Directors anticipate that the application of these RARESTEE  ERZEFITIR

new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact KIERTEEMBmE R T

on the Group’s financial performance and positions REE 2 BRI RARRAR, 5

and/or on the disclosures set out in these ZEFAMBRETEBREBKE

consolidated financial statements. FE o

b) Basis of Consolidation b) HFEERBEXE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the FEMBRREEARTARAER

financial statements of the Company and entities AR H B A FE Eﬁfzﬁﬁk

controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Wk o MAEATERY - BIAR

Control is achieved when the Company: BEAEEHIRE

e has power over the investee; o FAIHREHRITHEES

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns e RFE2Z2MW ?xﬁaﬁ%z%%&ﬁﬁ—}
from its involvement with the investee; and B BREFSTEER:

M

e has the ability to use its power to affect its o H{TREBENTEHAER-
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an B EE RIGRER il = I81%

investee if facts and circumstances indicate that Hz=d - B—EIA EHB S

there are changes to one or more of the three A REBe T EEEEEHIER

elements of control listed above. BEHR -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year

ended 31 March 2015

BE—F—nF=H=1—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b)

ANNUAL
2014/15

Basis of Consolidation (Continued])

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b)

Basis of Consolidation (Continued])

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. \Where
certain assets of the subsidiary are measured at
revalued amounts or fair values and the related
cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity,
the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
accounted for as if the Company had directly disposed
of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred directly to retained earnings). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 38 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” or, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, unless the investment is classified
as held for sale or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year

ended 31 March 2015

BE—F—nF=H=1—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

c)

ANNUAL
2014/15

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at
their fair value, except that:

i) deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities
or assets related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

i) liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or
the replacement of an acquiree’s share-based
payment transactions with share-based payment
transactions of the Group are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment” at the acquisition date; and

i)  assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5
“Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” are measured in
accordance with that standard.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

c)

d)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net
of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree [(if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or another measurement basis
required by another standard.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses,
if any, and is presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year

ended 31 March 2015

BE—F—nF=H=1—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d)

e)

ANNUAL
2014/15

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss in the consolidated
income statement. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable
and the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition. A disposal
group is a group of assets to be disposed of together
as a group in a single transaction, and liabilities
directly associated with those assets that will be
transferred in the transaction.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

e)

Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations (Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

Except for certain assets as explained below, non-
current assets and disposal groups classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. The
principal exceptions to this measurement policy so far
as the financial statements of the Group and the
Company are concerned are deferred tax assets,
assets arising from employee benefits, financial
assets (other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entity) and
investment properties. These assets, even if held for
sale, would continue to be measured in accordance
with the policies set out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for
sale, and on subsequent re-measurement while held
for sale, are recognised in profit or loss. As long as a
non-current asset is classified as held for sale, or is
included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or
amortised.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the Group and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations,
or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area
of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale, if earlier. It
also occurs if the operation is abandoned.
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BE—F—nF=H=1—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

e)

f)

ANNUAL
2014/15

Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations (Continued)

Discontinued operations (Continued]

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a
single amount is presented on the face of the income
statement, which comprises:

i) the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

i) the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or
on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group
constituting the discontinued operation.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Major costs incurred in restoring property, plant and
equipment to their normal working condition are
charged to profit or loss. Improvements are
capitalised and depreciated over their expected useful
lives.

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant
and equipment that has already been recognised is
added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is
probable that future economic benefits, in excess of
the originally assessed standard of performance of
the existing asset, will flow to the enterprise. All other
subsequent expenditure is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f)

g)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-ine basis to
write-off the cost of each asset over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:
Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of
the lease terms and 20%

Plant and machinery 10%

Computers 25-33%

Furniture, fixcures and 20%
equipment

Motor vehicles 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year

ended 31 March 2015

BE—F—nF=H=1—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

g)

ANNUAL
2014/15

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans
and receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees on points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. At the end of each
reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries and cash
and cash equivalents) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses, (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below], unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost less provision for
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

g)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been impacted.

For all the Group’s financial assets, objective evidence
of impairment could include:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

— default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade and other receivables, assets that are
assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
credit period, as well as observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

2.

FEEHEE)

g)

SRTEAE(E)
R EETHEEE

TREENHREARMERE AR
BERR - HEEEEBREATHE
REMEERBLEZ —AXZHES
HLEMEEZRBFARKRERE
XETE MERMEEBORE -

RAKEMEERMEENS
ZEEREAERE

ORE

— BOAREFHEINREY
BN EE 3k

—  BHSRIERFEHASER
5

— ERABARERESETH
BER -

T W B R % L A B M R TR S AR R A
RFERNBEZETEREER
A RERREBEBEEETREN
il - RUWFIEES 2 EBURER &
Al ERAREZBERFER - A
AREREREZBATHEENZ
IREIEIN - AR B EMGRIRB A
B8 2 2 Bl 5o 77 87K 5 B R 2

#eh

= °

LR EIHR AR 2 M EEM
5 OREBBRITREEBEERREH
BEHIRERNIEm AR - I
BB E < REERRFTERA
EFRZEFARKBREREZRE
Bz Z8ETE -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

teEEEZERERAR

|



XX

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year

ended 31 March 2015

BE—F—nF=H=1—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

g)

ANNUAL
2014/15

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)]

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables and amounts
due from group companies, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When trade receivables or amounts due from group
companies are considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if,
in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Financial instruments (Continued])
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and other financial liabilities. The Group
classifies its financial liabilities into other financial
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect
of financial liabilities and equity instruments are set
out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expenses over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
when appropriate, a short period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade payables,
other payables and accruals, amounts due to
subsidiaries and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year

ended 31 March 2015

BE—F—nF=H=1—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

g)

ANNUAL
2014/15

Financial instruments (Continued)
Convertible bond

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that can be
converted to equity share capital at the option of the
holder, where the number of shares that would be
issued on conversion and the value of the
consideration that would be received at that time do
not vary, are accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability component
and an equity component.

An initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible bonds is measured as the present value
of the future interest and principal payments,
discounted at the market rate of interest applicable
at the time of initial recognition to similar liabilities
that do not have a conversion option. Any excess of
the fair value of the compound instrument over the
amount initially recognised as the liability component
is recognised as the equity component. Transaction
costs that relate to the issue of a compound financial
instrument are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of
proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in
profit or loss on the liability component is calculated
using the effective interest method. The equity
component is recognised in the convertible bonds
equity reserve until either the bond is converted or
redeemed.

If the bond is converted, the convertible bonds equity
reserve, together with the carrying amount of the
liability component at the time of conversion, is
transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. If the bond is
redeemed, the convertible bonds equity reserve is
released directly to retained profits/accumulated
losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

g)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of
a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid or payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

h)

ANNUAL
2014/15

Impairment of other assets other than goodwiill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above)

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

— intangible assets;

— investments in subsidiaries;

— investment in an associate; and

— investment in a jointly controlled entity.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for intangible assets
that are not yet available for use and intangible assets
that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not there is
any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e., a cash-
generating unit).

REPORT %

2.

FEEHEE)

h)

HiEE (HERMS) (REXHA
BAEE g5 X)) RE

RERESHR  AEEHSEHA
BB SNBE R IR - LARRI T HIE
EEGHBEBENTR K (KA
BN BERRBZEERERBERD
TEFESERDHTR

— BE- BEEERE:

— BVRE:

YA -
&=l

— HRWERF

Bl
el

Z

— RZFBERRZRE Rk

— RHERZEHEEZKRE -

WEEAZEDRRFE  ZEELZ
AUy [ & BBZE T PARTAl o UbAh + A
RAIBA 2 BV EE M EAHFR
ZEREEN®A S LR BERD
R HASFHFARESHE -

FHE R EEFE

BEZANOSEEERNFER
HERALEREEZREE ° &F
EEREER - EFRRRERE
B RRERSHEEELEABEE
R R 2 RS T ISR 2 BRI RS
HERARAKIRE - WREEMEL
MIRNEMAER E BN EME
EREENRERA - RIAREBL
EERERANSKNEERR (A
ReETEA)RETEAJWEISEHE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

h)

Impairment of other assets other than goodwiill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

Reversal of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the GEM Listing Rules, the Company is
required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting,
in respect of the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the Group applies
the same impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year.
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ended 31 March 2015

BE—F—nF=H=1—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

h)

ANNUAL
2014/15

Impairment of other assets other than goodwiill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill and available-for-sale financial
asset carried at cost are not reversed in a
subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim period relates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash without notice and which
were within three months of maturity when acquired.
Cash and cash equivalents include investments and
advances denominated in foreign currencies provide
that they fulfill the above criteria.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents would also
include bank overdrafts and advances from banks
repayable within three months from the date of the
advance.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure to
settle the obligation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

k)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value
at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a
finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
costs and reduction of the lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance costs are recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they
are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s policy
on borrowing costs.
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For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

k)

ANNUAL
2014/15

Leases (Continued)

Lease where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group
is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets
and rentals receivable under the operating leases are
credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under the operating leases are
charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term on a straight line basis.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and these
benefits can be measured reliably.

()  Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
on the transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with the
time when the goods are delivered to customers
and title has passed.

(i)  Income in respect of management services is
recognised when the services are rendered.

(i) Royalty income from the sub-licensing of
programme right and intellectual property right
is recognised on an accrual basis evenly over
the contract period.

(iv) Licensing income from event is recognised when
the events are completed or the services are
provided and the amount can be measured
reliably.
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For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

m)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(v) Income from box office takings is recognised
when the services have been rendered to the
buyers.

(vi)  Income from investments in film production is
recognised when the films are released for
distribution.

(vi) Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis, taking into account the
principal amounts outstanding and the interest
rates applicable.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case they are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the consoclidated income statement
because it excludes items of income and expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year

ended 31 March 2015

BE—F—nF=H=1—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

m)

ANNUAL
2014/15

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consoclidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

m)

n)

o)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised.
The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current or deferred tax for the year is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively. \Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Films in progress and film rights

Films in progress represents films and televisions
drama series under production and is stated at cost
incurred to date, less any identified impairment loss.
Cost is transferred to film rights upon completion.

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Their costs are
amortised over the underlying licence period, with
reference to projected revenue.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
state-managed retirement benefit schemes which are
defined contribution schemes are charged as an
expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year

ended 31 March 2015

BE—F—nF=H=1—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

p)

ANNUAL
2014/15

Share-based payment arrangement

Share options granted to directors and employees in
an equity-settled share-based payment arrangement

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date
and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve).

For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. \When share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained earnings.

Share options granted to advisors

For share options granted to advisors in exchange for
services, they are measured at the fair value of the
services received. If the entity cannot estimate reliably
the fair value of the services received, the entity shall
measure their value, indirectly, by reference to the
fair value of the equity instruments granted. The fair
values of the services are recognised as expenses
immediately, unless the services qualify for
recognition as assets, with corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

q)

r)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income, in which cases, the exchange differences are
also recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year

ended 31 March 2015

BE—F—nF=H=1—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

r)

ANNUAL
2014/15

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company (i.e. Hong
Kong Dollars (*“HKD”) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

From 1 April 2010 onwards, on the disposal of a
foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint
control over a jointly controlled entity that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associate that includes a
foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to
a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are reattributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates or jointly controlled entities
that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised
in the translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EEGEEE)

s) Related parties s) BEAL

A related party is a person or entity that is related to e AT ‘a;ﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ&&%zg\

the entity that is preparing its financial statements BIREERBDEBAZALRE

(“reporting entity”). 8 -

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s (@) ZBAALHEEATIHRER
family is related to a reporting entity if that ZAATHERKE 2R H
person: WEEREM
() has control or joint control over the () HREEBREFITHE

reporting entity; Sl S 15 4

(i) has significant influence over the reporting (i) HWEEBRHEBEAF
entity; or 255

(i) is a member of the key management (i) AWmEEBImMEER
personnel of the reporting entity or of a BRARZEEREREX
parent of the reporting entity. 8o

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of (b) EBBAEARUTERES
the following conditions applies: R HEIRE F e A -

() the entity and the reporting entity are () ERERETBARF—
members of the same group (which means SEERQRIKE  IEgAQ
that each parent, subsidiary and fellow EIRNEAGIAEESN]
subsidiary is related to the others); BAREBMItEER

it

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture (il X—EEAES—TEZ
of the other entity (or an associate or joint G /NI ETE S /N I
venture of a member of a group of which SRS —ERBMESE
the other entity is a member); UNCIID A=l LN )

ER-WNCII

(i) both entities are joint ventures of the same i) BERHARR-—F=F2
third party; BENT]

(iv) one entities is a joint venture of a third (v) EBAF=-FEBZA
entity and the other entity is an associate ENTE mME—EER
of the third entity; F-FEBEBIBED

ET .
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥5 80 RO EE

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
s) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of
the following conditions applies: (Continued)

(v) the entity is a post-empolyment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
reporting entity or an entity related to the
reporting entity. If the reporting entity is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the reporting
entity;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a); or

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

t) Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the
executive directors that make strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 3. £#MTITHR
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) £RTEER
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of the REBREARARSERNECHMEER
Group and the Company’s financial assets and BERREHARZEEENAT -
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
The Group The Company
TEE ¥ /NG
2015 2014 2015 2014
—2HF —T-F —B-HF —TNOF
HK$'000 HK$OOO HK$S000 HK$F0OO0O
FTET FHET FTET FHET
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables ER R ERRIE
(including cash and (BEReR
cash equivalents) Re%ED)
Trade receivables FE U BR R 3,831 11,435 = -
Financial assets included in T AH AR
other receivables and RERESZ
deposits TREE 15,402 14,803 595 1,058
Payments to parties for RREZREBRER
procurement for investment S 2 F3IE
of cinema business 47,010 49,204 - -
Amounts due from FEUS BB A Rk IE
subsidiaries - - 222,099 221,129
Bank balances and cash RITHEMRER 128,974 106,000 8,607 4,107
195,217 181,442 231,301 226,294
Financial liabilities cREeE
Financial liabilities measured REHRAGEZ
at amortised cost THEE
Trade payables & BR 5K 2,141 1,730 = -
Financial liabilities included STAEAM
in other payables and FANERENST
accruals DEZEHEE 52,775 59,016 3,422 4,147
Amounts due to FERI B A Rk A
subsidiaries - - 145,422 145,450
Convertible bonds gRBRES 19,331 16,379 = 19,331 16,379

74,247 77,125 168,175 165,976

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk and

interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The

Group’s overall risk management programme focuses

on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks

to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’'s

financial performance.

U}

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
primarily through sales, purchases and
recognised assets and liabilities that are
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which
they relate. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily United States Dollars (‘USD”)
and Renminbi (“RMB”).

The Group currently does not expect any
significant movements in the exchange rate of
USD to HKD and it is mainly exposed to the
effects of fluctuation in RMB. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy, however, the management
monitors the foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

Assets

3. @MIAGE
(b) MERMBREEBMNRBER
AEEFEKEEZEYERR - ™
% 2 b (’FE%‘MI\EH &%IJTH
) ;f //\L@Jﬁiﬂ faz o
K%lZ%ﬁéﬁ%H ERT I ES
Ehis o AR TR EER - WEIR
DEREB B RE 2 BET R
2,
(i) SMEE S
7R & B BT T ¥ 2 SNE R B
ERABUHEEBIEES
LISz BEAKRZEERE
WREERAGE - EAWIE
BRrEBEFEAETRA
R -
AEEEBRBEAETLET
ZEREEAMEXRE
REITZAERARE RS2
TE o KEI E AT {8 91 B
fJ/EPLBZ ’ E. E@%
T%W\\IEEH@ : i’[ﬁéﬁ%%ﬂéﬁ%
EREHRERINER R
REBUIINEFBEEBEE
LBERGREHBZEERE
mT -
2015 2014
—E-0F —T-mEF
USD'000 RMB'000 USDOO0O RMB0OOO
TET AR¥TR FET ARETT
2,013 19,436 1,767 19,529
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥5 80 RO EE

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

0}

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group sensitivity
to a 3% increase and decrease in HKD against
RMB. The sensitivity analysis includes
outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items. A positive number below
indicates an increase in profit where HKD
weaken 3%. For a 3% strengthening of the HKD
against RMB, there would be an equal and

3.

ﬁmﬂla (nlﬁ)
(b) MERREEBMNREEKE)

(i]

SNER Sz (&)

TRAFAREEEHBITEA
REEXEFARTH®I%Z
HREE - WHREDTERE
REMASNESEZ EREIA
Be ANEHERTEBTR
BE3%E & M 2 FH & o 8
TTRARKEEI%  Bey

opposite impact on the profit, and the balances 5&@%?\%&@&%@ i
below would be negative. TERERAEE -
Impact of RMB
AREzE
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-mE
Sensitivity rate R E & 3% 3%
Loss after tax and retained M FR 12 1R &
earnings IRE & T 317 187

This is mainly attributable to the exposure to
cash and cash equivalents denominated in RMB.

It is assumed that the change in foreign
exchange rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to the
Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk for
financial instruments in existence at that date,
and that all other variables, in particular interest
rates, remain constant. It is also assumed that
the pegged rate between the HKD and the USD
would be materially unaffected by any changes in
movement in value of the USD against other
currencies. There was no significant effect on
the Group’s result for 2015 and 2014 in
response to reasonably possible changes in the
foreign exchange rates to which the Group had
exposure at the end of the reporting period.

HEERRUARKHEZ
B MBHFEYER -

Bk [ R & B oh & B R &
AW BEREARAEERZHA
FENERB 2SR T AL
kB EMATIERR(LHER
MR)RFTE - WINMERR
BILRETT B BERNE

TTRAEMEEEERTMNE
FTEXIEATE AR
BERSHRAARER Y
REAEEH T EHAEE
R-E-—RFR-_T—NF
CEBELBATE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥5 80 RO EE

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(ii]

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to the cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk due to
its bank deposits and borrowings, respectively,
carrying interest at variable and fixed rates
which are disclosed in notes 23 and 26 to the
financial statements respectively. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy and does not use any derivative
instruments to reduce its economic exposure to
the changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for the Group’s variable-rate bank
deposits. The analysis is prepared assuming
these financial instruments outstanding at the
end of the reporting period were outstanding for
the whole year. A 25 basis point increase or
decrease is used when reporting period interest
rate risk internally to key management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 25 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, there would have been no significant
impact on the Group’s post-tax profit/loss for
the year ended 31 March 2015 and 2014
respectively. This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable rate bank deposits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥5 80 RO EE

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

liii]  Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to cash at bank, trade and other receivables
and deposits. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash at bank are placed with high-credit-quality
institutions and directors of the Group consider
that the credit risk for such is minimal.

In respect of trade receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. Debtors
with overdue balances, which will be reviewed
on a case-by-case basis, are requested to settle
all outstanding balances before any further
credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

In order to minimise the credit risk in respect of
trade and other receivables, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate
allowances are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Group
consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

At 31 March 2015, the Group’s exposure to
credit risk was influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The Group
had a certain concentration of credit risk as
49% of the trade receivables was due from a
film distribution of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥5 80 RO EE

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(iii]

(iv]

Credit risk [(Continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk without
taking account of any collateral held is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk from trade and
other receivables are set out in notes 19 and
20 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by
the board of directors when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority.
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
readily realisable marketable securities and
adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity
reqguirements in the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3. &MTIRGE)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BIBREBREEBEENREE(E)

(Continued)

(iv)  Liguidity risk (Continued) (iv)] FEELER (&)
The following table details the remaining TERERMEPRAEE R
contractual maturities at the end of the AARFEOTESRAB (RS
reporting period of the Group’s and the KERRBRBEeREAE &
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, B A NF RGF BN F =R (8]
which are based on contractual undiscounted EREMAREAZFR)GTE
cash flows (including interest payments ZEMFE) ZFHGE T
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, By - ARAR QG A ESRKE
based on the rates current at the end of the R EFRABZFHE -

reporting period) and the earliest date the
company can be required to pay.

The Group REH
2015
ZEB-5f
Total More than ~ More than
contractual Within 1 yearbut 2 years but
undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
Carrying cash flow  on demand 2 years 5years  More than

amount  RHFEHE —FR%  IR-FE  SREAEER 5 years
REE ZRenELE EZX DRWE HREE SREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Thn Thx T TEn TR

Trade payables RN 2,141 2,141 2,141 = = =

Financial liabilities included in STARMERFER
ather payables and accruals BB S REE 52,775 52,775 52,775 - - -
Convertible bonds HKES 19,331 45,000 - - - 45,000
74,247 99,916 54,916 - - 45,000

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ﬁ
teEEEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3. £MIA(E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BIBREBREEBEENREE(E)
(Continued)
(iv)  Liguidity risk (Continued) (iv] #“EEzERE (&)
The Group (Continued) AEE(E)
2014
—Z-mE
Total Mare than Mare than
contractual Within 1yearbut 2 years but
undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
Carrying cash flow  on demand 2 years Syears  More than
amount  AHFER —Emg ZR-EE ZHWEE 5 years
RHE RensesE EEX SRRE PREE SREE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TEx TATL TATL TAT TR TiEr
Trade payables [ENER 1,730 1,730 1,730 - - -
Financial liabilities included in AR ERFER
other payables and accruals [EitFEz2RER 59,016 59,016 59,016 - - -
Convertible bonds mhRES 16,379 45,000 - - - 45,000
77,125 105,746 80,746 - - 45,000
The Company AAT
2015 2014
—%-3% —3-mF
Total Within ~ More than Total Within ~ Mare than
contractual Tyear 1 year but contractual Tyear 1 yearbut
undiscounted oron lessthan undiscounted oron less than
Carrying  cash flow demand Syears  More than Carrying ~ cash flow demand Syears  More than
amount  AXEHE  -FRd SR-FE 5 years amount  RHOFEME  —ERE SR-EFE 5 years
REE RERELE EEX HREF SREE BHE RengLE 33 SREE ZRAE
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O00  HK$O000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
F#R FHr T#r T#n T#n T TEL TEL T T
Financial liabities included 5 \ &Lt /ER 3178 R
inather payables and e EUEZABAR
accruals 3,422 3,422 3,422 - - 4,147 4,147 4,147 - -
Convertible bonds ERES 19,331 45,000 - - 45000 18379 45000 - - 45000
Amounts due to #
subsidiaries 145422 145422 145,422 - - 145,450 145,450 145,450 - -
168,175 193,844 148,844 - 45000 165976 194597 149,597 - 45000
ANNUAL REPORT #3f
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3. £MIA(E)
(c) Fair values (c) 2¥E
The fair values of debt elements of convertible bonds AR ESED 2 A FETIRER
is determined in accordance with generally accepted REBER KA EE BT
pricing models based on discounted cash flow BRPEESRERIEREASIRIZ
analysis using prices or rates from observable BRIRIB S RENDITMET °

current market transactions as inputs.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the REE B R AN BV K AN B B AR AN
Company’s financial instruments carried at cost or JEzeMmTAZERMEHEAN -
amortised cost are not materially different from their T-RFR _T—NF=ZA=1+—
fair values as at 31 March 2015 and 2014. HZAFETEERER -
4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. EXEHE RFIER
JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and AEERBBELRREMAZ (BIER
are based on historical experience and other factors, ERERABIRTZAIEEE  RKEIE
including expectations of future events that are believed to TEER) FAE AT i il 5 B AT o

be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning REEBEEBBAKR 2ot REBRE - H
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by FTEL @GR G BEEER
definition, seldom equal to the related actual results. ERAER -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
teEEEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year

ended 31 March 2015

BE—F—nF=H=1—HIFFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

a)

b)

ANNUAL
2014/15

Impairment of films in progress and film rights

The management of the Group reviews the progress
of the films and film rights at the end of each
reporting period and identifies the slow-moving film in
progress that is no longer suitable for use in
production. The management estimates the net
realisable value for such film in progress and film
rights based primarily on the recoverable amount. In
addition, the Group carries out review on each film in
progress and film rights at the end of the reporting
period and makes allowance for any film in progress
that production is no longer proceed.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation and amortization
charges for its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (other than goodwill). This estimate
is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets of similar nature and functions. It
could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response to
severe industry activities. Management will increase
the depreciation and amortization charges where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives or
it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold. Periodic review could result in a change in
depreciable and amortization lives and therefore
depreciation and amortization expense in future
periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

c)

d)

e)

Impairment of trade and other receivables, and
amounts due from a director of a subsidiary and
non-controlling interest

The Group makes impairment loss on doubtful debts
based on an assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables and other receivables, and amounts due
from a director of a subsidiary and non-controlling
interests. Impairment is applied to trade receivables
and other receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates. \Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact carrying value of
receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the period
in which such estimate has been changed.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise.

Valuation of share options and convertible bonds
granted

The fair value of share options granted and
convertible bonds were calculated using the binomial
pricing model based on the Group’s management’s
significant inputs into calculation the volatility of share
price, weighted average share prices and exercise
price of the share options granted. Furthermore, the
calculation assumes nil future dividends.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

f)  Realisation of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets relating to tax losses are
recognised as management considers it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses can be
utilised. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred taxation assets and taxation in
the periods in which such estimate is changed.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the executive directors
that are used to make strategic decisions. The Group’s
operating businesses are structured and managed
separately according to the nature of their operations.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
two operating segments for the year:

Cinema investment and management — cinema investment
and provision of cinema management service.

Filmed entertainment, new media exploitations and
licensing businesses — movie production, licensing and
derivatives, crossover marketing, provision of interactive
contents, artist development and last miles engagement.

Sales and trading of coal and palm oil was regarded as
discontinued operation.

The revenue from external customers reported to the
management is measured in a manner consistent with
that in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Revenue between segments are carried out on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length
transactions.

Segment result represents the profit or loss by each
segment without allocation of central administration costs
including directors’ salaries, investment and other income,
finance costs and income tax expense. This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥5 80 RO EE

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

5.

- ==
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. PEEH(E
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue, results, TREZWMO BN AEE 2 W= - %
e = > =
assets and liabilities by reportable segment. B EERBE-
Year ended 31 March 2015 Year ended 31 March 2014
HE-F-RFSASt-ALEE HECT-MESA=H-BIEE
Filmed Fimed
Entertainment Entertainment
New Media New Media
Cinema  Exploitations Cinema  Explotations
Investment  and Licensing Investment  and Licensing
and Businesses and Businesses
Management L1728 Continuing  Discontinued Management BRE Continuing ~~ Discontinued
FhiRE HEEHY  Operations Operation Total Fhitg Operations Operation Total
REE REGEEE SEEERE DRLSERR #it REE R b i BEILEEER a3t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS0 HK$000  HK$000
T T FEn FéEn Fin i Fhn T Fin Fin
Segment Revenue
Reportable segment revenue 76,820 141 76,961 - 76,961 77,508 2,939 80,447 - 80,447
Inter-segment revenue - - - - - - - - - -
Revenue from external customers SHEEE 7S 76,820 141 76,961 - 76,961 77,508 2,939 80,447 - 80,447
Segment Results
Reportable segment result 11,469 (9,259) 2,210 - 2,210 14,640 (37,630) (22,990) (12) (23,002)
Interest income 132 VK 205 - 205 " 69 80 - 80
Unallocated corporate expenses (13,568) - (13,568) (14,776) - (14,776)
Share-based payments (46,076) - (46,076) (10.332) - (10,332)
Finance costs (2,908) - (2,908) (2.440) - (2,440)
Loss before taxetion BHAER (60,137) - (60,137) (50,458) (12) (50470)
Segment Assets
Reportable segment assets 150,813 73,594 224,407 - 224,407 145,708 83,907 229,815 188 229,803
Unallocated carporate assets 14,061 - 14,081 8,703 - 8,703
Consolidated total assets GREEEE 238,468 - 238,468 238,318 188 238,508
Segment Liabilities
Reportable segment liabiities 58,695 11,740 70,435 - 70,435 62,173 15,262 77435 - 77435
Tax payables 2,101 - 2,101 1492 728 2,220
Convertible bonds TERES 19,331 - 18,331 16,379 - 16,379
Unallocated corporate liabilties FOREEER 3,406 - 3,406 4,147 - 4,147
Consolidated total liabilities 95,273 - 95,273 99,453 728 100,181

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥5 80 RO EE

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. SBEHE(E)
For the purposes of monitoring segment information and HESIESMEE R RS BEROREEEREmS

allocating resources between segment:

— all assets are allocated to reportable segments other — FEBSESPREZSRSFE - RS
than unallocated corporate assets. B AT EERSIN o

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments — FEEEYREZRSLE - ERIE
other than tax liabilities, convertible bonds and BE- #ﬁﬁxf AR RO %EE
unallocated corporate liabilities. BRI o

Other segment information: HihoBEER :

Year ended 31 March 2015
BE-Z-HF=A=1+-BLEE
Filmed
Entertainment
New Media
Exploitations
Cinema and Licensing
Investment  Businesses

and ERE. Continuing  Discontinued

Management ~ #7i2#83%  Corporate  Operations Operation
¥hRE RAEFHE level BE B4 Total
RER % tEEE gexn BEXH wct

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FER TET TET FET

Additions to non-current
assets

Interest income

Depreciation

Impairment losses

FRYEERE

MERA
e
REEE

1,559 - 12 1,571 - 1,571
132 73 - 205 - 205
9,068 23 518 9,609 - 9,609
- 8,591 - 8,591 - 8,591
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2014/15



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥5 80 RO EE

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5.

Other segment information: (Continued)

SWEHE)
Hit D BEH : (48)

Year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-ME=F=1—HItFE

Filmed
Entertainment
New Media
Exploitations
Cinema  and Licensing
Investment Businesses
and  BERE . Continuing ~ Discontinued
Management ~ $TiEfEFI% Corporate  Operations Operation
FhiRE REFTE level HE BiIE Total
RERE £ rEER Bexik mexk st
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TER TEx TET TET TR FHET
Additions to non-current  JEREIEERE
assets 749 - 1,829 2,578 - 2,578
Interest income FIEMA 1 69 - 80 - 80
Depreciation g 8,925 13 236 9,174 - 9,174
Amortisation of film rights B /7 44 - 717 - 717 - 717
Impairment losses FEEE - 38,269 - 38,269 - 38,269
Revenue from major products and services: FEEMRERE WS :

The Group’s revenue from its major products and services

were as follows:

AT BN E £ REm R IRF 2 Has

2015 2014
—E-RF —Z—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Continuing operations BEREXEK

Cinema business CATE i 76,820 77,508

Distribution of film rights, royalty and BEREET ENER
licensing income R RE A 141 2,939
76,961 80,447

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
teEEEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥5 80 RO EE

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information:

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (excluding Hong Kong). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location of the
customers, irrespective of the origin of the goods or
services. The geographical location of the non-current
assets is based on the physical location of assets in the
case of property, plant and equipment, and the location of
the operation to which they are allocated in the case of
goodwill. Revenue from external customers and information
about non-current assets by geographical location are
detailed below:

SBEAH(E)

REBEBXZREARFPEARLMEE (T
PRAB)CEER TP 2HEME -
Tim B oo S RIS RRIZ R P AT e 2 H i3
Elno EMBEEZHEUE - Y
¥ BELRREMNS  DEREEZERHD
BEH MuEBmE - ARBEBELE
VB IHEFPZBREREANIERE
EMEMSLEE D 2 ERBDEEEH
I -

Revenue from

external customers ~ Non-current assets
REMBEF 2 lzd FRBEE
2015 2014 2015 2014

—E-Rf —FT-mMF ZB-FHF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$PO0O HK$'000 HKFOOO

FET TET FExT TET

Continuing operations BEQEER
Hong Kong B

PRC (excluding Hong Kong) FE(TREER)
Others HAth

125 1,104 1,292 1,797
76,820 78,850 @ 37,514 45,637

16 493 = -

76,961 80,447 38,806 47,434

Revenue from major customers:
There are no major customers contributing over 10% of

the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2015
(2014 Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥5 80 RO EE

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

6. TURNOVER

An analysis of Group’s turnover for the year from

operations, is as follows:

RAFEARBGL LR SLBEHIT
T

2015 2014
—E-0F —ZEUF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHE T FET

Continuing operations BEREXEK
Revenue from cinema business OBt 5 7% 2 W 76,820 77,508
Production and distribution of film rights ZL{E [z 31T & /i i - 2,141
Royalty and licensing income BN R R AR A 141 798
76,961 80,447

7. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME 7. Htuli SR HEMBUIA

2015 2014
—2-HF _—TNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FET

Continuing operations BEREXEK
Interest income F BUA 205 80

Gain on disposal of equity interests HETREZRE W

in the film in progress 344 -
Government grants* B AR * 3,713 4,051
Others Hh 60 79
4,322 4,210
* The government grants represent the subsidies received by the * BUT 8 B A SR Bt 70 o B 28 5 B U

Group from the government for the operation of cinemas in PRC.
There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these

grants.

TRAARG o BIE A B X S B 2 RERK G T
SHEHAEIR -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
teEEEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥5 80 RO EE

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MERF
2015 2014
—E-Hf —TNOF
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FHERT THBTT
Continuing operations BEREXEK
Imputed interest on convertible bonds — AJIR[RESH 2 HEE TS 2,908 2,440
9. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 9. BRMABIR

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/

BIAERE NG GEA) THIRE

(crediting):
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT—puF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Continuing operations BEREXEK
Auditor's remuneration ZE BN 5 700 630
Direct expenses of movie and B RETREFREERX
licensing businesses 64 2,315
Direct expenses of cinema business TR EBEERY 32,754 33,053
Amortisation of film rights ER- AT PR ¥ - 717
Depreciation e 9,609 9,174
Exchange gain RN (99) (1286)
Impairment losses B R 8,591 38,269
— Impairment on trade receivables — ERERFURE 7,489 10,090
— Impairment on goodwiill — BERE - 8,295
— Impairment on films in progress — EREYRE 792 8,471
— Impairment on film rights — BENRIERIE 310 11,413
Operating lease rental in respect of HERAMEZEEROES
rented premises 7,847 7,499
Staff costs (including directors’ BETIRA(BEEZHS)
remuneration)
— Salaries and allowances — e &R 13,724 12,594
— Equity settled share-based — RSB AN AER 2 R
payments 4,615 10,332
— Retirement scheme contributions — ERETEIHE R 2,113 1,285
Equity settled share-based payments BB R A E LA A
paid to advisors 2 41,461 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 10. EXME
BE_T—DAER-_F-NWF=A
S+-ALFEENRENARRES
2SI :

The emoluments paid or payable to the Company’s
directors for the year ended 31 March 2015 and 2014
were as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2015
BE_Z-H5=A=1+—HLEE

Salaries,
allowances Share
and other based
Directors’ benefits payments
fee #He- 2l URBAE Total
E=me RHEMAEMN ERZIMAX s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TET FTET TET FTET
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi EEY P - - 1,023 1,023
Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly JE 3 e 2+ 120 - 449 569
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee BREZLE 180 - 449 629
Mr. Chong Lee Chang REBRFEE 120 - 449 569
Mr. Lau Man Kit Bt 120 25 449 594
Non-executive Director HHTEE
Mrs. Chin Chow Chung Hang, RBEF T
Roberta 120 - 449 569
Independent non-executive Directors B FE#77ZH
Mrs. Chen Chou Mei Mei Vivien R AR
(Note 1) (BfaE1) 45 - 449 494
Mr. Chum Kwan Yue, Desmond EE LA 120 - 449 569
Mr. Wong Chak Keung BEREE 120 - 449 569
Ms. Choi Mei Ping (Note 2) BXYat(M2) 46 - - 46
991 25 4,615 5,631
Notes: Bfat
1. Retired as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 1. RZZE—WHENATHARELRRRELIE
15 August 2014. WITES -
2. Appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company 2. RZT—NF+—ATHNBEZEAEARAR

on 14 November 2014.

B IEMITES -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
teEEEZERERAR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥5 80 RO EE

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

10. EFM& (&

Year ended 31 March 2014

)

BE_Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

Salaries,
allowances Share
and other based
Directors’ benefits ~ payments
fee Fre - EEA AR B Total
EEWe RHEMBH EREIAR fBET
HK$OOO HKFOOO HKFOOO HKFOO0O
FET FHET FHET FHETT
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi B s - - 10,222 10,222
Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly (Note 3] A 2zt (ME3) 28 - - 28
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee REELE 180 - 110 290
Mr. Chong Lee Chang REBRFEE 120 - - 120
Mr. Lau Man Kit (Note 3) 2B (it 3) 28 - - 28
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Mrs. Chin Chow Chung Hang, PR EHTL LT
Roberta 120 - - 120
Independent non-executive Directors ~— BUHHiTEE
Mrs. Chen Chou Mei Mei Vivien BRE S+ 120 - - 120
Mr. Chum Kwan Yue, Desmond BfE NS A& 120 - - 120
Mr. Wong Chak Keung HEWEE 120 - - 120
836 ~ 10332 11,168
Note: HtaE -
3. Appointed as an executive director of the Company on 6 January 3. RZZE—WF—-ARNBEEZEAARRT
2014. HE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥5 80 RO EE

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

11. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 11.

Of the five individuals in the Group with the highest
emoluments, four (2014: one) are the directors of the
Company whose emoluments are disclosed above. The

ERFAR

AEELEREHMARES  O&R (=
T—NE: —R)RARAESR  HFT
ERNEXHEE BT —R(ZFT M4

emoluments of the remaining one individual (2014: four), WEZ) ABZEHBaT -
is as follows:

2015 2014
—E-RF —F—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Salaries and other benefits e hHEMER 631 1,367
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIMHE R 18 60
649 1,427

Analysis of emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
(including directors and other employees) by emolument
range is as follows:

hesmTMAR(BRESLEME
8) 2 HmEmsE 2 o

Number of employees

EE®E

2015 2014

—E-HF —ZTNF

Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 7T AN 4 4

Exceeding HK$1,000,000 but i#i@ 1,000,000 % 8

not exceeding HK$1,500,000 i 1,500,000/% T 1 -
Exceeding HK$10,000,000 but ##8 10,000,0008 T8

not exceeding HK$10,500,000 83 10,500,000 T - '|

During the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals, including directors, as an inducement to
join the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In
addition, during the years ended 31 March 2015 and
2014, no directors waived any emoluments.

RBE-_Z-AFE-_FT-—NWE=A
=+t—BULEEFEAR AREALEALS
REasMABR(BRES) XNHM - 1F
RWEMBAKE 2 LR RBERZ
ME- I RBEE_T—HFR-F
—MOFE=A=+—BIFERXN " HEE
FREEIEM

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
teEEEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥5 80 RO EE

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

12. TAXATION 12. R1A
2015 2014
—2-HF _—TNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Continuing operations BEREXEK
The taxation charge comprises: MBS HBTE
Current tax BNEAFR I8
Hong Kong a5 - 224
The PRC A 2,839 3,152
Tax recognised in profit or loss PIEE AR 2 B8 2,839 3,376

Hong Kong profit tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for the years ended 31 March

2015 and 2014.

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax
at 25% for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

ANNUAL REPORT F#
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

12. TAXATION (Continued) 12, I (&)

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss

REEHRBEESR

B RATSIZ BRAA

before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or EEEEROT
loss as follows:
2015 2014
—E—AREF —E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Continuing operations BEREEK
Loss before taxation BrEATE B (60,137) (50,4358])
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEMEFTRE 2NIA (9,923) (8,325)
Income not subject to taxation PEBA (527) (492)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose R HUBER ARG 2 BsZ 12,533 11,306
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries MEM FAER &L 2 W E Q]
operating in other jurisdictions Z TR E & 753 969
Tax effect of unrecognised tax loss EHE.] TRIBE R 2 TS & 3 4
Tax effect of prior year's tax loss utilized — BEFEAREAHIBEENAREE
in this year BT E = (250)
Under provision in prior year BEFEBRERR = 164
Taxation charge for the year REEHREL T 2,839 3,376
Discontinued operation DR IEREER
Loss before taxation BRTATE R = (12)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEMEFTE WA = (2)
Tax effect of unrecognised tax loss RERMIBEE 2 RMigT 2 = 2

AREERIAX

Taxation charge for the year

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

teEEEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥5 80 RO EE

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

12. TAXATION (Continued)

The tax charge relating to components of other
comprehensive income is as follows:

12,

R ()

BLH fth 2 [ Uk BE 0 B B 2 TR R X 1A

2015 2014
“Z-1F —T-mF
Before Tax After Before Tax After
tax  charge tax tax  charge tax
BRBAT  BIEXM BRBi% BRA  BIEXH i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$0OO HK$SOOO HKFOOO
TET FER FEx FAET FHET FET
Exchange difference on BEBINEB
translating foreign operations:  [E {248 :
— Exchange differences arising ~— AREFES
during the year EXER 61 - 61 24 - 24
61 - 61 24 - 24
13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF 13. FLFHAEABEEEEGR
THE COMPANY
The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the ARARHEEAEEEEEIEREEE
Company includes a loss of HK$63,6895,000 (2014 63,695,000/ w( = T — Y £ :
HK$21,662,000) which has been dealt with in the 21,662,000/% ) EEARQ A 2 B
financial statements of the Company. WEPERIE -
14. DIVIDEND 14. KR

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥5 80 RO EE

For the Year ended 31 March 2015

BE—F—nF=H=1—HIFFE

15. LOSS PER SHARE

(i) Basic loss per share

(a] For continuing and discontinued operations

15. BIREE

@i

—

BREXER

(a]

FERERBREK LS
Y

2015 2014

—B-HF _—TNUF

HK cents HK cents

74l P

Total basic loss per share BRENEEEE (2.06) (1.94)

The loss and weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic
loss per share are as follows:

AUFTEEREREEZ B
1B R RN T S i B
T

2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT—puF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx FHIT

Loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company

ARBHEAANEIEAFE

(65,947) (59,464)

2015 2014
—2-I% —T-IF

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the purpose of basic loss per share

EEREABRZ
LA E IR

3,202,308,809 3,064,965,686

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

teEEEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥5 80 RO EE

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

15. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

15. BREBR (&)

() Basic loss per share (Continued) () EREXEEE)
(b]  For continuing operations (b) FELEER
2015 2014
—B-HF —TNOF
HK cents HK cents
AL &AL
Total basic loss per share BREKREBER (2.06) (1.94)

The loss and weighted average number of

ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic

R EESRERERZE
18 No 33 A 04 S 15 B B

loss per share are as follows: N
2015 2014
—B-HF _—TNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Loss for the year attributable NG E ANERERFE
to owners of the Company E518 (65,947) (59,464)
Less: Loss for the year attributable  J&l : ZRE SR IEKEEE 2
to owners of the Company RN E A AL
from discontinued operation KEEEIE - (12)
Loss for the year attributable REFEEEER 2 ARAT]
to the owners of the Company HEANEIEREE
from continuing operation &1 (65,947) (59.452)
2015 2014
—E-1% —T-E
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Bt ESRENEE
for the purpose of basic loss per share ZEBBIETHRE 3,202,308,809 3,064,965,686
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

15. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

0]

(ii)

Basic loss per share (Continued)
(c] For discontinued operation

There is no basic loss per share for the year
ended 31 March 2015.

Basic loss per share for the year ended 371
March 2014 is HKO.0004 cent per share
based on the loss attributable to owners of the
Company from the discontinued operation of
approximately HK$12,000.

Diluted loss per share

No diluted loss per share has been presented for the
years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014. The
computation of diluted loss per share for the year did
not assume the conversion of the Company’s
outstanding convertible bonds and the exercise of
share options as their assumed conversion and
exercise would decrease the loss per share in the
year.

15. B|AEE (&)
() SRERBEGE
(c] EHULMELEE

BE_T—RAF=-A=+—
BULEEE BESKRENE

18-

HE_ZT-—NF=A=+—
BEFEZERELREBEAR
FA20.0004# L - Ty LA A
NAEHEABERBEERIL
KX TE 2 B51E 412,000
BT RAEETH -

(il ERBEHE

HE-_ZT-RFLR-_FT-NF=H
=+t BLFEHREZSRES
BB - St EAFE SR E RN
I R R AN R B R AR TE 2 AR
EHFCE LR RBRED BT
RABBRERABRITEREHER
SREERD

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
teEEEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥5 80 RO EE

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. % - BER®RE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvement  Plant and equipment Motor
The Group &  machinery Computers PU vehicles Total
S 1] NELE  BEREE Bl HER®RE "E @
HK$000  HK$0O0  HKSOOO  HKEOOO  HK$OOO  HK$OOO
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
Cost KA
At 1 April 2013 RZE-=FMA—H 27,441 19,543 1,012 6,223 - 54,219
Additions HE - 497 162 122 1,797 2,578
Currency realignment fE & 265 188 7 59 - 519
At 31 March 2014 and RZE-NE=A=1—H
1 April 2014 RZZ-MFMA-A 27,706 20,228 1,181 6,404 1,797 57,316
Additions HE - 786 15 770 - 1,571
Written off i = (225) - (551) - (776)
Currency realignment AR 88 24 1 7 - 65
At 31 March 2015 RZZ-R¥=A=1-H 27,739 20,813 1,197 6,630 1,797 58,176
Accumulated depreciation and ~ ZHTEREE
impairment
At 1 April 2013 RZE-=FMA—H 651 232 553 203 - 1,639
Charge for the year EFXH 5,541 1,998 215 1,270 150 9,174
Currency realignment B 5 9 3 5 2 - 19
At 31 March 2014 and RZE-ME=A=1—H
1 April 2014 RZZ-MEMA-A 6,201 2,233 773 1,475 150 10,832
Charge far the year FEYH 5,542 2,089 205 1,324 449 9,609
Written off ke - (25) = (117) = (142)
Currency realignment & 3 12 5 1 8 - 21
At 31 March 2015 RZE-RF=A=t—H 11,755 4,302 979 2,685 599 20,320
Net book value REFE
At 31 March 2015 RZZE-RF=A=1-H 15,984 16,511 218 3,945 1,198 37,856
At 31 March 2014 RZE-EE=A=1—H 21,509 17,995 408 4,929 1,647 46,484
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 16. MK - BER &M (&)

Computers,
furniture,
fixtures and

equipment
The Company B - M-
| HERRE
HK$'000
FAT
Cost R
At 1 April 2013 RZFE—=FHmHA—H 360
Additions = 31
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 RZE—WF=A=+—8K
—E-WEEA—A 391
Additions NE 12
At 31 March 2015 WZZE—RF=A=+—H 403
Accumulated depreciation and impairment R WERREE
At 1 April 2013 RZE—=FWMA—H 153
Charge for the year FREXH 88
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 RZE—HF=HA=1+T—HK
—E-mHFEEA—A 241
Charge for the year FEZH 69
At 31 March 2015 RZZE—RAF=A=+—H 310
Net book value IREFE
At 31 March 2015 RZE—RAF=A=+—H 93
At 31 March 2014 RZZE—mF=A=+—H 150

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
ke EEZERBRAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥5 80 RO EE

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

17. GOODWILL 17. B8
2015 2014
—B-HF —TNOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
Cost AR
At the beginning and at the end of FYIRFLL
the year 20,718 20,718
Accumulated impairment losses iR EEE
At the beginning of the year FH4] (19,768) (11,473)
Impairment BB - (8,295)
At the end of the year F (19,768) (19,768)
Carrying amount BREE
At the end of the year FR 950 950

The carrying amount of goodwill (net of accumulated

impairment losses) was allocated to cash-generating units

as follows:

BEzREE(KIR R RERE) D
PEERSELEMN - AROT

2015 2014

—E-hHF —ET—OF

HK$’000 HK$'000

TFE T FHET

Cinema business — Cinema Group TR EKR — EXREER 950 950
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

17. GOODWILL (Continued) 17. &8 (&)

Part of the goodwill arose from the acquisition of Raxco
Assets Corp. (“Raxco”) during the year ended 31 March
2011, which was engaged in new media exploitations
business.For Raxco, the management considers that it is
difficult to set a concrete time-line for the development in
this segment, and future revenue cannot be reliably
projected, full impairment of the goodwill was made in the
year ended 31 March 2014.

Part of the goodwill arose from the acquisition of tbEE
Bt (/&) BPRAA (“Shanghai Bingo”) together with its
subsidiaries (“Cinema Group”) during the year ended 31
March 2013, which was engaged in cinema business.

During the year, the Group assessed the recoverable
amount of goodwill associated with the Raxco and Cinema
Group by reference to value-in-use. The calculations used
post-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets.
For the Cinema Group, management believes that the
recoverable amount would exceed its carrying amount as
at 31 March 2015 and therefore, no impairment is
necessary.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:

HE_ZT——F=A=1+—HBLFE"
BOMBEEEWENLSMEBMEE
7 2 Raxco Assets Corp. ([Raxco]) °
BRaxcoMsE - EEERRBEURERE
ZOBEHARREEK  BETEAER
AR WREBEE=—FT—WF=A
=+ ALFERBEELRERE -

g
ﬂ* ﬁ» H

Ao

E-=ZF=-A=1T—HLEE"
HEETBRBREZRER 2L
Ea?ém(i/i)ﬁﬁf'x Alts gD
REKBRR([EXHRER]) -

EPII

RAFEN  AEBEKLREFAEER
it Raxco R EF I EEB@ o EE
Z A Bl & R o SLIEE B R ER B IK
EECBRBEReREERN HEF R
SEME  BEERAATKEEEKE
BER-_Z—RAF=-A=+—HZER
B At WEREKE -

EREEAEMER 2R/

2015 2014

—E-hF — P4

Growth rate i8R R 3% 3%
Discount rate BLIR =& 15% 15%

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
teEEEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RIBATRZHER

The Company

¥ NN
2015 2014
—E-IF —E—MMF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LG - KA 41,159 41,158
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGB 340,166 331,496
Less: impairment loss & OREEE (118,067) (110,367)
263,258 262,287
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERT B A al5IE (145,422) (145,450)

FEU,(FEAS) P /B8 12 B FRIE AR SR 4 -
RENBRBEREE -

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

HERBSDHIT

The movement in the allowance for impairment is as
follows:

The Company

o

AR
2015 2014
—2-F5F —TNmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At the beginning of the year F4 110,367 110,367
Impairment losses recognised EHERREEE 7,700 -
At the end of the year FR 118,067 110,367

Included in the allowance are individually impaired amounts

due from subsidiaries which have significant loss for the

year.

ANNUAL REPORT F#
2014/15

BEERFAHRARERZ BRI

N ERIBERKIEA -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18. RMBARZHER (&)

Particulars regarding the subsidiaries at 31 March 2015

R-ZZE-—RHF=A=+—H WEBQF

are as follows:

ZEHBS

Attributable
equity interests

Place of Issued and  held by the Company
incorporation/ fully paid N
operation Type of share capital Bz R AR Principal
Name of subsidiaries FMRL/ legal entity BTk  Directly Indirectly activities
WEARERE EXH EEERESR BRRA EE Mg TEER
% %
Art Aim Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100 Movie
HEBR A £ company 1% production
BAREAEAR BRELE
BG Cinemas Limited The British Virgin Limited liability US$1 100 - Dormant
HeEFRERAT Islands (“BVI") company 1% Tma%
KERTES BREEAR
(IRBRXES])
BG Movies Limited BVI Limited liability US$1 100 - Dormant
HEEFERATF EBEIES company 1% Emex
BREEAR
Billion Success Corparation Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100  Dormant
Limited Eh company 1% Tmax
ERARAF BREEAR
Bingo Animation Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100 Cartoon
HEBEERAA EN company 1% production
BREMEAR TREUE
Bingo Cinema Investment Hong Kong Limited liability ~ HK$10,000 - 70  Cinema
Company Limited Hib company 10,000% 7T investment
HREYRREERAA BREAAH FhiRE
Bingo Cinema Management Hong Kong Limited liability ~ HK$10,000 - 70 Cinema
Company Limited Eib company 10,000% 7T management
HEEFRERERAR BREFAR ThRER

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

teEEEZERERAR
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For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18. RMMBARZHER (&)

Attributable
equity interests
Place of Issued and  held by the Company
incorporation/ fully paid N
operation Type of share capital [ N £ Principal
Name of subsidiaries FmRL, legal entity B#fTRk  Directly Indirectly activities
WEAREHE EE3iE ERERER BRRE E& B IEXHR
% %
Bingo Management Services ~ Hong Kang Limited liability HK$1 100 - Management
Limited e company 18T services
HRERRBERAF BREAAR ERRE
Bingo Mavie Development Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 100 - Movie
Limited & company 18T production
HREYERARAA BREEAR BRHE
Bingo Trademark Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 100 - Dormant
HEEEERAF N company 1% OmEE
BREEAR
Boscon Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$8 - 100 Cartoon
BRBERRAF 0 company BEL production
BREARA BRI
Brillant Tech Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 70 Cinema
RKEBRAA ) company 18T management
BREEDA FhER
China Cultural Industry Cayman Islands Limited liability US$100 - 100 Dormant
Investment Fund HEHE company 100%=7T EmeE%
REM(CEXREES BREEAR
Easybuild Assets Management BV Limited liability US$1 100 - Investment
Limited EREAHES company 1%L holding
SREEEEARATA BREEAR REER
EmCall Pte Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10 - 100  Dormant
HHBEBAF B company 10%7T TmEE
BREEAA
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For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18. RMMBARZHER (&)

Attributable
equity interests
Place of Issued and  held by the Company
incorporation/ fully paid N
operation Type of share capital [ N £ Principal
Name of subsidiaries FmRL, legal entity B#fTRk  Directly Indirectly activities
WEARER EXE EERERER BRRE E& B IEXHR
% %
Emcom (HK) Pte Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10 100 - Investment
HEBA (B ERAA BE company 1087 holding
BREAAR REAZK
Gi Space Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100 Dormant
05 company 18T Emax
BREEAR
Harvest Yield Investments BVI Limited liability uss2 100 - Dormant
Limited BEEAEE company 2FETL UmEE
BREEAA
High Amuse Limited BVI Limited liability Us$1 100 - Investment
EHARAF RBRLES company 1% holding
BREEDA REER
Huge Art Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 100 - Cartoon
FEBRAF % company 18T production
BREERDA RN EESE
Hugo Wisdom Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 100 - Dormant
ZEBRNA Hi company 18T Emex
BREEAR
Lofty Gain Investments Limited  BVI Limited liability US$1 100 - Movie
BEREBRRA ERBEXHEE company (=0 production
BREEAR BRAUE
Lofty Shine Limited BVI Limited liability Us$1 100 - Investment
BEBRAF EBRTEE company (E holding
BREMLAR REER

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

teEEEZERERAR
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For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18. RIBATRIZRE (&)
Attributable
equity interests
Place of Issued and  held by the Company
incorporation/ fully paid N
operation Type of share capital [ N £ Principal
Name of subsidiaries FmRL, legal entity B#fTRk  Directly Indirectly activities
WEARER EXE EERERER BRRE E& B IEXHR
% %
New Harvest Trading Limited ~ BVI Limited liability HK$1 100 - Dormant
HEESERAA RBRUHE company 15871 gmay
BREAAR
Power Alliance Investment Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100 Dormant
Limited B company 18T Emex
BERERRAF BREERT
Raxco Assets Corp BVI Limited liabilty ~ US$62,720 - 100  Licensing
ERENHES company 62,7205t business
BREERT RRHEER
Sinotrans Resources Limited BV Limited liability Us$1 100 - Dormant
EZRERBRAA REREAHE company 1% TmeE
BREAAR
Shanghai Bingo Interactive PRC Limited liability ~ US$2.642m - 100 New Media
Information Technology F company 2,642,000 Exploitations
Co. Ltd* BREEDA e business
TN REDEEMRARAR MERRERE
FERMYRERER PRC Limited liability ~ US$100,000 - 70 Cinema
BRAR* h company 100,000% 7T management
BRELAR FhER
B5 (Lg)RERS PRC Limited liabilty ~ US$100,000 - 70  Cinema
BRAA* F company 100,000% T investment
BREEDA FhiEE
LEEREREATRAF PRC Limited liability ~RMB100,000 - 70  Cinema
H company AR investment
BREEAR 100,000t ThRE

m ANNUAL REPORT F#
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18. WIIBARIZHEE (B)
Attributable
equity interests
Place of Issued and  held by the Company
incorporation/ fully paid N
operation Type of share capital [ N £ Principal
Name of subsidiaries FmRL, legal entity B#fTRk  Directly Indirectly activities
WEARERE B EEERESR BRRA EE Mg  TEXR
% %
HEEFR (L8 BRAF PRC Limited liability RMBBm - 52.5  Cinema business
F company AR T

BREMERR  6,000,0007

BEYREYRERAH PRC Limited liability ~ RMB500,000 - 52.5  Cinema business
I company ARE FhREB

BREELA 500,000

mmtEEFRERAA PRC Limited liability - RMB500,000 - 52.5  Cinema business
F company ARE T %
BREFRH 500,000 7t

* Wholly owned foreign enterprises (WOFE) registered under PRC law. * RIBFREERE L2 INEABEARE -
The table below shows details of a non-wholly owned TRINTHEERFERER 2 AEE
subsidiary of the Group that has material non-controlling FEEMBARZHE
interests:

Place of

incorporation Proportion of ownership

and principal interests and voting

place of rights held by

business non-controlling interests Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary SREILER  FEREGEEZEEEEER  noncontroling interests non-controlling interests
KEADEHE TEERMY SERA FERERELET Bl FhER

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
2-3f  -I-mE Z%-3F CT-mF 0 Z%-3F 0 CT-.F
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
T Thn TARL ThEL ThRL T

LEEFR(LE)ERAR LESFR (L) ERAA PRC 47.5% 47.5% 5,121 6,361 12,207 7,086

Indiidually mmaterial subsidiaries EEFARER, E
with non-cantroling interests BREEAMEDT (2,767) (1,984)
9,440 5,102

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
teEEEZERERAR
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18. RIBLATZER (&)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s TREVEBEEREAEIERES 2K
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set EFEWNBATZHBEERE - Tatbf
out below. The summarized financial information below BERREREEANKE R B HEA
represents amounts before intra-group eliminations. -

2015 2014

—F-1F —TWF
HKS$'000 HK$'000

ke EER (L8 BRAR FHExT FET
Non-current assets EMBNEE 37,220 44,839
Current assets TEEE 52,840 34,740
Current liabilities mENAE (58,972) (62,808)
Turnover ] 76,820 77,228
Cost of income W A B (32,754) (33.040)
Other income EH iz A 3,897 4,058
Expenses S (37,215) (34,875)
Profit for the year KEERH 10,748 13,371
Profit attributable to owners KREVEE AESE ST

of the Company 5,643 7,020
Profit attributable to non-controlling FEVRAR b 2 FE A i 7

interests 5,105 6,351
Profit for the year REZ R A 10,748 13,371
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

18. WIREBATIZER (

=)

MR
2015 2014
—E-HF C—T—@OEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
tm B (E8) BR AR FERT FAT
Other comprehensive income ZN/NCIEZ 2PN
attributable to owners of the HEmemEmlas
Company 18 11
Other comprehensive income FEFERR M TR R
attributable to non-controlling Hih 2 mEU s
interests 16 10
Other comprehensive income REFHM2E YR
for the year 34 21
Total comprehensive income NATHEE AEG
attributable to owners of the THEW=ERE
Company 5,661 7,031
Total comprehensive income IR R RN
attributable to non-controlling THEW=EE
interests 5,121 6,361
Total comprehensive income REE2ERGERE
for the year 10,782 13,392
Dividends paid to non-controlling mANE g S gy
interests - -
Net cash generated from KETEEPTISIR R
operating activities 14,882 16,591
Net cash used in investing activities KEEHTAE S F5E (1,159) (599)
Net cash generated from financing BEEE TSR &R
activities 3,536 1,854
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes JME[&E R&8) 2 g2 2 189 (485)
Net cash inflow WeRAFE 17,448 17,361

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
teEEEZERERAR
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The aging of the Group’s trade receivables is analysed as

19. FEUCARX

REE 7 RRERFBRE DT ¢

follows:
2015 2014
—E-RF —F—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHET FET
Within 30 days 30H AR 1,828 1,220
31-60 days 31-60H 81 178
B61-90 days 61-90 H - 13
Over 90 days 90 B £ 20,254 20,867
22,163 22,278
Provision o g (18,332) (10,843)

3,831 11,435

For Cinema Business and Filmed Entertainment, New
Media Exploitations and Licensing Business segment, the
credit terms granted by the Group to its customers
normally ranged from COD (cash-on-delivery) to 120 days.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. All trade receivables are
expected to be recovered within one year.
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For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19. BUIRSR (&)

Impairment losses on trade receivables are recorded using
an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables
directly. Before impairment, there was approximately
HK$19,900,000 receivable from Huayi Brothers for
JTTW. Included in the aforesaid HK$19,000,000
receivable was approximately HK$18,332,000 recorded
in the Group's books for the year ended 31 March 2013
and carried forward over the two years ended 31 March
2015. In preparation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 Mach
2014, the Group considered not to record the shortfall of
approximately HK$1,568,000 as revenue in its financial
statement on the ground of recognition of the dispute with
Huayi Brothers and the immateriality of the shortfall
amount. Since the trade receivable balance was long
outstanding and the Group has requested Huayi Brothers
to settle the receivables but no positive feedback was
obtained, the Group has taken legal actions to recover the
receivable during the Year. Although 1t =M E =R HARE
bz (Beijing No.3 Intermediate People’s Court, (“the PRC
Court”)) rejected all of the petitions by Lofty Gain on 15
April 2015, the Company is of the opinion that, Huayi
Brothers objectively failed to perform its commitment to
sign the agreement and to perform a supplemental
agreement thereto. After seeking legal opinions on the
judgment, Lofty Gain determined to lodge an appeal against
the judgment made by the PRC Court and the notice of
appeal has been lodged already. Although the Group has
confidence to recover the outstanding balance through civil
actions, in view of the fact that the petition was rejected by
the PRC Court before, the Group made an impairment for
the outstanding receivable in dispute, i.e. approximately
HK$7,489,000 to reflect the possible financial impact to
the Group. The movement in the allowance is as follows:

JEUs B 7k 2 R B RS 1B 1 R R B BR R 8%
AR BRIEAREBR TR S 2 A8
MRIE  FHBRT  REBEGHE
URBR SR E B S  BUERT - AR AEIR [7E
Bre RER | BEREWEELPREY
19,900,000% Jt o it & U 3 1B
19,000,000 TBEEREE —T—=
FZAZ+—HAULEFERAANEEERF
HEUEREBE—_E—RE=A=+—
B IFARE 4 S 458~ 4718,332,000%
T RIREAREBEHE T —NF=A
S+t HAULEFEZRAMEHREN - A
REMRETERE DS 2 MO A KL=
W REA - AN E IR E TR
=i =% 41,568,000 7T AR AW
HoHNEUEREHRDHLTEA - A
RNEBD EREE DB EEREREKR
BT RESTImEDOE  WAEED
RERNFECEETERE S B EKR
He FBEAARME=ZARRARZER(
BER )R —E—HEMA+R BEE
BEZIFABR  BEEARARBES
TEERBREBITEAREE R
BITH R E - B BHRBEIEARE
Bi%  BESRTE B BEABR T EH R
HEF WYEEXBEBELFARMNE - F
EAREBAEVEBREFRDUE RE
BiEeR  MENFABRKEREFEE
REE REEDRFEUD 2 REER
FEUGRIBIEHIRE4) 7,489,000% T -
LA R S AR = [0 7 BB TS 2 o B
ZEEINT

The Group
KEH

2015 2014
—E-RF —ZE—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FAT
At the beginning of year F4) 10,843 753
Impairment B 7.489 10,090
At the end of the year FR 18,332 10,843

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
teEEEZERERAR
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The aging analysis of trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

19. FEUARRR (&)

I E\HAR BB AR KR LR BEZE
WRRF R DT AN T

The Group
rEE

2015 2014

—E-hF —FE—UF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Neither past due nor impaired 37 A e HA SR E 1,828 1,220
Past due but not impaired: B e R AR E

Less than 1 month past due B ET B A LA 81 178

1 to 3 months past due B =3 A - 13

More than 3 months past due B A3 ME A LA £ 1,922 10,024

3,831 11,435

Receivables at 31 March 2015 and 2014 that were
neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of
customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables at 31 March 2015 and 2014 that were past
due but not impaired related to a number of independent
customers that had a good track record with the Group or
with appropriate impairment allowance accounted for.
Based on past experience, management believes that no
further impairment allowance was necessary in respect of
these balances as there had not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances were still considered fully
recoverable. The Group did not hold any collateral over
these balances.
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20.

21,

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 20. HtEWRIA - &R BN
PREPAYMENTS I
The Group The Company
Sy F NS
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HF _—_TNF =ZT-HF _TMOF
HK$'000 HK$00O = HK$'000 HKFOOO
THET FET THET FET
Other receivables (Note) H b el shE (K aE) 12,902 15,124 595 1,058
Deposits and prepayments B RIENFHIE 4,468 4,063 212 231
17,370 19,187 807 1,289
Note: HiaF -

The amount include the deposit paid for acquisition of assets in cinema
business in Chengdu and Chongging of approximately HK$10,180,000
(2014: HK$11,662,000) which the Group has terminated the acquisition
plan and the vendor agreed for the repayment of the deposit.

PAYMENTS TO PARTIES FOR PROCUREMENT FOR
INVESTMENT OF CINEMA BUSINESS

Pursuant to the announcement for the joint venture
agreement (“JV agreement”) dated 9 June 2011, a
subsidiary of the Company entered into a JV agreement
with CineChina Limited (“CineChina”) for the investment of
cinema business in the PRC.

The payments were made to a director of a 70% owned
subsidiary, who is also a director and shareholder of
CineChina, and to CineChina, a 30% shareholder of the
above-mentioned subsidiary for the purpose of materializing
the JV agreement:

21.

ZEHEBEAKE R EEY R EBWEEEZEN
7 £ #910,180,000/% x( = T — g %
11,662,000/87T) - MALBEEK IS B
EHREBEEETS -

HEERRERBERASEAXMZ
]

BIEABAE-_T——FXANLBHRAE
wE((aEmRED FIBZRE - AQF
— X K B 2 7] #ECineChina Limited
([CineChinal) iR B BT £ 755]

A A -

N EEEEEHEM A TARF
E70%EE BRIz —RESE (%
EE M ACneChinaz EELKE) &
CineChina (¥ & L il i B 7] 30% ## 2=
ZPRRER) 2 FRIA

The Group
rEE

2015 2014
=B-HF _—TNUF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Amount paid to a director of a subsidiary SN FHBARESE KA 16,979 19,173
Amount paid to CineChina ¥ {5 ¥ CineChina Z 508 26,786 26,786
Amount paid to an independent third party ST —RBULE =T 2R 3,245 3,245
47,010 49,204

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

teEEEZERERAR

2



22

21. PAYMENTS TO PARTIES FOR PROCUREMENT FOR

INVESTMENT OF CINEMA BUSINESS (Continued)

Under the prevailing legal requirements in the PRC, certain
restrictions are imposed on foreign investors for taking up
majority stake in cinema business in the PRC. In
accordance with legal opinion from PRC lawyer, the
approval for engaging in the foregoing business by the
subsidiaries of the Company has not been obtained from
the respective PRC authorities during the year ended 371
March 2012 and the organising of the above cinema
business had not been completed at 31 March 2012. The
director of a subsidiary, CineChina and an Independent
third party (collectively, “these parties”) held the fund for
the Group and would settle the cost incurred in
procurement of the investment of cinema business in the
PRC.

By an internal group reorganization the capital of Shanghai
Bingo was transferred from a domestic enterprise to a
sino-foreign joint venture enterprise to comply with the
relevant regulatory requirement for foreign investors to
operate cinema business in the PRC during the year ended
31 March 2013. The Group legally owned 75% equity
interests in Shanghai Bingo to operate the cinema
business by mid-February 2013. The results of the cinema
projects, including Linan and Hangzhou cinema projects,
legally owned by Shanghai Bingo are consolidated into that
of the Group after completion of the internal group
reorganization. Pursuant to the agreement entered into
between the Group and these parties on 6 December
2012, these parties in principle agreed to act as a conduit
of payment on behalf of the Group for the development of
the cinema business in the PRC. These parties have
substantially utilized the funds for the cinema business
through their connection (the “Connection”) in the PRC. As
at 31 March 2015, HK$42,132,000 (2014:
HK$46,086,000) have been settled by the Connection
and is included in other payables of the Group. The Group,
these parties and the Connection have principally agreed to
offset the funds held by these parties with the amount
payable to the Connection upon finalization of all the
construction and decoration cost incurred and paid. The
outstanding balances owed by these parties will deem to
be settled upon the execution of the aforementioned offset.
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22. FILMS IN PROGRESS AND FILM RIGHTS

(a)

Films in progress

22. ZHERRERNRE

(a) EHEK

The Group
rEE

2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT—puF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At the beginning of the year F4) 3,046 10,604
Addition NE 3,575 913
Disposal k= (5,246) -
Impairment B (792) (8,471)
At the end of the year FR 583 3,046

The films in progress was measured at cost less any
identifiable impairment loss.

Included in films in progress was approximately
HK$792,000 (2014: HK$8,471,000) related to
CJ7 cartoon drama and games invested in prior
years. The management considers that it is difficult
to set a solid time schedule to distribute and the
expected income would be minimal. Therefore, the
amount was impaired during the Year.

The estimated recoverable amount of the remaining
films in progress as at 31 March 2015 was
determined based on the present value of expected
future revenue derived from discounting the projected
cash flows by a discount rate of 15%.

EREZ LKA A BRI E
BB E -

ERANBEFERERNRILI7 RS
Z B RIERIA) 792,000 T (=
T4 : 8,471,000 ) B &
ANERHEY - ERERR ARE
ATEHEE EITRER - BFEK
BIETEKXN  MERAFEHEH
HIRRE

RZE—RHEF=A=+—8 &T
HERER 2 Mt ke e IR
15% 2 BhIR AV BAR S ME
TS HESMARRKE 2 REmME
T

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
teEEEZERERAR
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For the Year

ended 31 March 2015

BE—F—nF=H=1—HIFFE

22. FILMS IN PROGRESS AND FILM RIGHTS

22. ERERRERNRE (E)

(Continued)
(b) Film rights (b) EFIRE
The Group
AEE
2015 2014
—2-HF —T—NOF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At the beginning of the year F50 2,200 14,330
Amortisation recognised in the year R 7 #5 - (717)
Impairment SRE (310) (11,413)
At the end of the year FR 1,890 2,200

ANNUAL
2014/15

The film rights are amortised and recognised as an
expense in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss based on the proportion of actual income earned
during the year to the total estimated income from
the distribution of film rights.

The film rights were related to the Group’s rights in
JTTW. As JTTW was first released in the Spring
Festival in 2013 which is over two years from the
year ended 31 March 2015.
reassessed the economic value of JTTW on a prudent

The Group has

basis and made an impairment of approximately
HK$310,000 (2014: HK$11,413,000).

The estimated recoverable amount as at 31 March
2015 was determined based on the present value of
expected future revenue derived from discounting the
projected cash flows by a discount rate of 15%.

REPORT %

BEEREREFARROEREA
HETEFREELENEFTTRWRA
FILL BT AR & 1R a8 R R 55 I FERR
A e

EXMEDEBASER [FAlEe
BRER] 2N AR [7E e [&
BRI IR-_ZE—=FF0H8E L
M- BEE_T-HF=A=1—
BIEFEEFEBBMRE - AEE
EEEFNE ARG FRER] 2&
HEE - I 1F IR E41310,000
ET(ZF—MF 11,413,000
BIT) °

W=E—HE=A=+—8 {5t
AU T 15% 2 BB B
TR & 7 2 AT TR S
%7 RETMET -
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23.

24,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

23. BeERAEEFED

The Group The Company
rEE NN
2015 2014 2015 2014

—F-5%f —T-NF —F-HF —T-MOF
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKFOOO
TET TAT TAT TAT

Cash at banks and in hand RITRFHEAS

128,974 106,000 8,607 4,107

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rate based on daily
bank deposit rates. The fair values of the Group and the
Company’s bank balances and cash at 31 March 2015
and 2014 approximate their corresponding carrying
amounts.

TRADE PAYABLES

The aging of the Group’s trade payables is analysed as

RITRSBERBHBITHERFE 2%
B ERIFE - REBRARFNZ
TE-RFER-_FT-NFE=ZA=+—82
BITHERRBE S 2 A FELREREYE
HEEMEE o

24, EAR®R

AREBEMNERRREDNAT -

follows:
The Group
EE
2015 2014
—E-hHF —ET—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THBTT
Within 30 days 30B A 2,141 1,730

Payment terms with suppliers are generally within 30 days.

IR 2 R HAR — AR A B0 B AR -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED @
teEEEZERERAR
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25.

26.

DEPOSITS RECEIVED, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS

25 BEfiRe  HMEARRRE
L]

The Group The Company
iy E NS
2015 2014 2015 2014

—E-FF —T-NE -B-HEF _—T-NE
HK$'000 HK$O0OO = HK$'000 HKPOOO
FET  Fii | FEm Tin

Customer’s deposits and receipts & P ik & &8 FIE
in advance

18,925 20,836 - -

Other payables and accruals E At JE T R IE I JE R TSR 1B
(Note) (Ki#t) 52,775 59,016 3,422 4,147
71,700 79,852 3,422 4,147
Note: st -

The amount include payable to the Connection of approximately
HK$42,132,000 (2014: HK46,086,000) which is stated in note 21 for
details.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 22 February 2010, the Company entered into the
Service Agreement with Mr. Chiau whereby the Company
appointed Mr. Chiau as an executive director of the
Company and Mr. Chiau accepted the appointment with
prescribed duties for an initial term of five year from 1
June 2010. In consideration of the performance by Mr.
Chiau of his duties for the Company, the Company shall, as
a remuneration package to issue the convertible bonds to
Mr. Chiau with an aggregate principal amount of HK$45
million. Details of share-based payment as described in
note 36.

The convertible bonds contain two components, liability and
equity components. The fair value of the liability
component, which was determined by independent
professional valuers, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited on
the date of issue, is the present value of the contractually
determined stream of future cash flows discounted at the
effective interest rate of 16.82% and providing
substantially the same cash flows, on the same terms, but
without the conversion option. The residual amount is
assigned as the equity component and is included in equity.
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26. TRBX IR

RNZZE—ZTF-_A=+=ZH AQFHE
BSEERI IRz BUARRIEE
BEERARBINTES - MABALER
BREBEEZZE S EHE=Z
—ZEFERNA—BRFARHAF - ERB
EERBRARNABEBITHBE ZRE A2
AEAMABALTEETASBLER
45,000,000 L2 Al R EHIEAH
BB A o DARR (0 B 50 2 A3 SREF it i B
36 -

AMEEFeEEmERS - aERRK
K - BEHD 2 AFE(BBIEE
HEMBERTAERAREE)RETH
H BANMEBETARASRERER
HME16.82% R IRE - W AR
REHERABARRSRE - XL EL R
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26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The movement of the liability component and equity
component of the convertible bonds for the year is set out

26. IRBRRSF (&)

7 AR ES A B ED RIS LD
BB ;

below:
Liability Equity
component  component
=R R
HK$'000 HK$' 000
FHET FHET
At 1 April 2013 RZE—=FWA—H 13,614 110,353
Convertible bonds issued AT —=FRA-RBETZ
on 1 June 2013 AR ES 325 3,896
Imputed interest charged EEHHEER S 2,440 -
At 31 March 2014 RZZE—HF=RA=+—H 16,379 114,249
Convertible bonds issued MRIZE—ERA—RA#ITZ
on 1 June 2014 AR ES a4 532
Imputed interest charged EEHEEF S 2,908 -
At 31 March 2015 R-ZE—RF=A=+—H 19,331 114,781
2015 2014
—B-HF —T0OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FAET
Mature within 1 year —F NI - -
Mature later than 1 year —F 1% 5| Hf 495331 16,379
19,331 16,379

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
teEEEZERERAR
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27. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

27. ERILESEE

On 6 August 2013, the board of directors of Sinotrans WZE—=F/\AXB  KXRFAWER
Resources Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, confirmed AIERERBRARICESERRNE
and ratified that the business of trading of coal and palm B RZE—=F _AKIELEEEKIT
oil be terminated in February 2013. Accordingly, for the hER - At B2 —NF= A
year ended 31 March 2014, the trading of coal and palm = t—HIEFE  EEEREEOER
oil business was classified as a discontinued operation. EoEARKRIEEESER -
The results of the discontinued operation included in the FAGETEHRRZERIEEEERE
consolidated financial statements are set out below: EEHIIT ¢

2015 2014

—E—hF —ZE—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHER FHET
Revenue Was = -
Expenses X = (12)
Loss before tax R A 1R = (12)
Income tax expenses PRS2 - -
Loss for the year from discontinued PRI B 2 R FREEE
operation = (12)
Loss attributable to: eSS -
Owners of the Company PAVNIE ¥ = DN = (12)

Cash flows from discontinued operation
Net cash used in operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash used in financing activities

ERIREEBELZRERE

REXGIRAEFER - -
BRERDIAREFER = -
BB ARBPTRIREIFER - -

Net cash flows

REeMEFH - -
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. B&F

As at 31 March 2015 As at 31 March 2014
R-Z-H5F=A=+—-H RKRZT-MWF=A=1—H

Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RHHE [ B ER HiE
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
R FER TR FER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.04 BREEOC.04ET
(2014: HK$0.04) each (ZZ—M%F:0.04%7T)
BRI
Authorised: EE
At the beginning and FUREL
at the end of the year 5,000,000 200,000 5,000,000 200,000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.04 BREE0.04 T
(2014: HK$0.04) each (ZZ—{F :0.04%7T)
BRI
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR
At the beginning of the year E4) 3,082,195 123,288 3,061,405 122,456
Share allotment under share option IR B 2R 2D
scheme (Note 1) (Biz£1) 130,750 5,230 20,790 832
At the end of the year R 3,212,945 128,518 3,082,195 123,288
Note 1: During the year, 130,750,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.04 BT RAFEE  BREAQEZERETE
each pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company at %17130,750,000 % & ik E 8 0.04 /&
consideration of HK$20,336,000. L2 EiEiR - {{E/20,396,000/8 7T °
In prior year, 20,790,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each RBEFE  BREBERRAZEREST
pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company at 211377 20,790,000 i Z ik H{E 0.04 8
consideration of HK$3,243,000. T2 T - K{EA3,243,0007% T °

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED @
teEEEZERERAR
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Capital management

Capital comprises of share capital and reserves stated on
the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
owners of the Company and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher
owners’ returns that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group
maintains its net asset position.
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EXrERE

BEABREE MBI TR A 2 I
ARFEE - AEEEREEAZEZRAR
TIRERNEEENB BRI ERLEEE
rE - KM AREEBRARKFR
E an Ko AR 7 TE (B A e A & 22 A AN BUAS Bl
BEE HBERARAERENTRER
W RE LR A AR o

AEEEHRS MNEREEEARE K
KERSHERALR(EHREER
K BB R G E AR 75 SR 2 47 e S AR PR
MEZBRGFE  LERREERREZ
FCRAEEARE - REIE_T—0F
ZRA=t—HLFER AEERFHE
BEFENR -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥5 80 RO EE

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The net debt-to-equity ratio at 31 March 2015 and 2014

was as follows:

28. Be& (&)

ExEE(E)

R-B-AFR-F-ME=A=+—
A2 FaEERLENT

The Group The Company
rEE Fi/NE|
2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-EHF —TF ZE-HF —T-0OF
Notes = HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mz FTET FHET FAET FHET
Current liahilities REaE
Trade payables FERTBR IR 2,141 1,730 = -
Deposits received, other BliRe - HAER
payables and accruals FIEREEFE 71,700 79,852 3,422 4,147
Amounts due to subsidiaries RN E R - - 145,422 145,450
Tax payables e T8 2,101 2,220 - -
75,942 83,802 148,844 149,597
Non-current liabilities FrEaiE
Convertible bonds AR E S 19,331 16,379 19,331 16,379
Total debt aERE 95,273 100,181 168,175 165,976
Less: Cash and cash BBRENELEED
equivalents 23 (128,974) (106,000) (8,607) (4,107)
Net (asset)/debt (BE)/BaEFE (33,701) (5,819) 159,568 161,869
Total equity (including B
non-controlling interests) (B3R IEIEpERERS) 143,195 138,325 104,590 101,857
Net debt-to-equity ratio FREHERLE N/ATERH N/ATER 152.6% 158.9%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirement.

ARAREETHBEL A TENHE
5.2 B AR <

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
teEEEZERERAR
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29. RESERVES

The Company

Share  Contributed

premium

RiEE

29. fEfR
PN
Equity
component
of convertible Share
bonds options  Accumulated
surplus  ATRRES reserve losses Total
BfBn EENS BRERE  ZHER @3t

HK$000  HK$000

HKF000  HK$00O  HK$OOO  HK$OOO

T T ThEL ThEL TAT TAT
At 1 April 2013 RZE-=FWA-A 331,580 1,988 110,353 75,884  (531,991)  (12,186)
Issue of convertible bonds BT ARES - - 3,896 - - 3,896
Issue of ordinary shares under BB E: 2
share option scheme BT ER 4,027 - - (1,616) - 2,41
Equity settled share aption RrsERRERH
arrangement - - - 6,110 - 6,110
Lapse of share options BRI - - - (51,692) 51,692 -
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - (21,662)  (21,662)
At 31 March 2014 RZE-RF=A=1—H 335,607 1,988 114,249 28,686  (501,981)  (21,431)
At 1 April 2014 RZE-MFMA—H 335,607 1,988 114,249 28,686  (501,961)  (21,431)
Issue of convertible bonds BTAARES - - 532 - - 532
Issue of ordinary shares under — REERIET 2
share option scheme BITLBR 25,332 - - (10,166) - 15,166
Equity settled share option RAEERBRELH
arrangement - - - 45,500 - 45,500
Lapse of share options RRERN - = = (448) 448 =
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - (63,695)  (63,695)
At 31 March 2015 RZE-H¥=A=1—H 360,939 1,988 114,781 63,572  (565,208) (23,928

At 31 March 2015, no reserves is available for distribution
to owners of the Company (2014: Nil).

The share premium is arising from the issue of shares of
the Company.

The contributed surplus represents the difference between
the combined net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by
the Company and the nominal value of the shares of the
Company at the time of the Group reorganisation.
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 30. REBRAERTE

The Company’'s share option scheme was adopted
pursuant to written resolutions passed on 19 October
2002 (the “Scheme A”) for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors, eligible employees and
participants who have contributed to the Group, and has
expired on 12 November 2012. Pursuant to resolution
passed on 15 August 2012, a new share option scheme
(the “Scheme B”) was adopted under the same conditions
of the original scheme and will expire on 14 August 2022.
Under Schemes A and B (collectively, the “Schemes”), the
board of directors of the Company may grant options to
full-time or part-time employees including directors
(executive and non-executive) and any advisor, consultant,
supplier, distributor, contractor, agent, business partner,
promoter, service provider or customer of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, to subscribe for share in the
Company.

Subject to the condition that the total number of shares
which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Schemes and any other schemes of the Company must
not exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue
from time to time, the total number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the Schemes when
aggregated with any shares subject to any other schemes
is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company immediately upon the listing of the shares on the
Stock Exchange (“Scheme Mandate Limit”), without prior
approval from the Company’'s shareholders. Options lapsed
in accordance with the terms of the share option scheme
will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
Scheme Mandate Limit. The number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted to any individual in
aggregate within any 12-month period is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue, without
prior approval from the Company’'s shareholders. Options
granted to substantial shareholders or independent non-
executive directors or any of his, her or its associates in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of offer
of the option exceeding the higher of 0.1% of the
Company’s shares in issue and with a value in excess of
HKS$5 million must be approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

BE—ZEZ-_F+ATNLBERBCEER
RER - AR AIFMEERER S (T5
EIAD FTEZEENASBES 681K
EEREATEEELERM o 28E -
f@stgE e -—_E2——F+—A+=H
[ BER-_E——F \A+HA@E
BZRER - ARRIREHERERSE
B 2 R s B AR i s 2 ([FHEIB)) -
BHHEABR -_E-_—F \A+MNAEE
e ABIEETEIA KRB & tE )
KABEEFE A RAR T HEEAH B
REZ B ERES  BERTRIE
ITEERTMWER  EHRA - HE
o AEE R E¥BE
HBRA BREHERIBFPELE
It - AR A ARG

ERITEREZ S8 MR R AL E
L ET B KW RITEZ B RETTE
BREmA TRIT 2B BB EEL
RRBNE 2 BTG 30% 2 &4
RT  EREARABRRELMSEZS
AT REZSFEN TRE 2BRE
B % B B dn i SR ST T A A 51 B FTS I
ZAERIB D HEt PSR B AN R R R R
P L& B 2 IR 10% ([ 5 8l = # R
) - RIBEBRESE ZERERRZ
BRERS T2 AR BIRERER - &
AEARRBBRRELAMEZBERT - R
El+ &8 A AR ARl [ E A A &R T
ZEBERBES RO EE - T8
BARREEITRMZ 1% - REERD
BRERHIL(BEER)+ @A HE
AR TEIEMRIBIIFRTESHR
ZIERBBALZBERE  SRBEARQ
Al B #& 17k H01%x B B &
5,000,000# 7T (A& & & R%E) - Al
AR R RIBRALE ©
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option. Options
may be exercised at any time from the date of acceptance
of the share option to such date as determined by the
board of directors of the Company and the exercise price
will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the Company’'s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of the Company’'s shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Details of specific categories of options and the fair value
of options are set out in note 36 to the financial
statements.

Details of the share options granted under the Schemes
and any other schemes and movements in such holdings
during the year were as follow:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥4 R P

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
A2 —FT—hF=H="1—HIFE

30. MEBxiERTE (/&)

Rz B AR L B#EE 21 A
N LEBDEREIN 1B TRER -
BREANEABREE AEEAQR
EXeET AHBHRERTE . B
TEEBTSEROARA RN REL
BEZWTE : (i) ARE RO NERR
H A EIRT FLE 2 B 2 F U B K (iii)
RRBRPZEE=FERZ2RDE °

BREAESRIER MR A FEZFE
NS MAMFESE -

RAFEE - ZFr 8 M EtET 8118
TREOZBREREZBFFMT

Number of shares issuable under options held

BEfEBRETFRITZROHE
Balance at Balance at
Share 1 April 31 March
option 2014 2015
type R-Z-MF R-E-1F
Category BRE mA—A Granted  Exercised Lapsed =A=+—H
85 BE Pk 2R BI% BAK 28
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
TR TR TR TR TR
Directors S 2012A 30,250 - (250) - 30,000
2013A 2,000 - - - 2,000
2013B 125,000 - - - 125,000
2014A - 27,000 - (3,000) 24,000
Employees B8 2012A 10,000 - - - 10,000
Advisars =l 20118B 9,000 - - - 9,000
2012A 220,800 - (130,500) - 90,300
2014A - 277,140 - - 277,140

397,050

304,140  (130,730) (3,000) 567,440

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
during the year was approximately HK$0.39.
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 30. MERR#ERTE (FH)
The following share options were outstanding under the BHE_ZT-—HNF=A=1+—HILFE -
Schemes and any other schemes during the year ended ZEFTEI R MEMETEIIA T HARITE

31 March 2014:

Z BRI

Number of shares issuable under options held

REFEBRET TR BOHUE

Balance at Balance at

Share 1 April 31 March

option 2013 2014

type RZF—= R-ZT—NF

Category Bz mA—H Granted  Exercised Lapsed ZA=1—H
Bl B4 Z#ER B [REBXES BRI LR
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000

TR Tk TR T T

Directors - 2011A 125,000 - - (125,000) -
2012A 30,250 - - - 30,250

2013A - 2,000 - - 2,000

2013B - 125,000 - - 125,000

Employees EE 20124 10,790 - (790) - 10000
Advisors B 2011B 9,000 - - - 9,000
2012A 240,800 - (20,000) - 220,800

415,840 127,000 (20,790) (125,000) 397,050

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
teEEEZERERAR
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The fair value of the share options of 2014A granted
during the year ended 31 March 2015 was approximately
HK$45,500,000 (2014: HK$6,110,000) and the
Company recognised total expenses of approximately
HK$45,500,000 for the year. (2014: HK$6,110,000).

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Company had 477,140,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme, which represented
approximately 14.1% of the Company’s shares in issue as
at that date.

31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties
which fall due as follows:

30. MEBxiERTE (/&)

BHE_ZT-—RAF=RA=+—HILFE"
PR 2 20M14AB IR EZ R TFENR
45,500,000/ w( = & — M@ % :
6.110,000/&7T) » M AR AR FRHE
R 48 X 445,500,000% (= &
—M% : 6,110,000%7T) °

RLEZEHEAMBHRRER - AAF
REZFTEHRTEZBERER
477,140,00015 - #HE R Z A AR A
EETEMNO14.1% -

31. BEHEWRIE
A EEERERA
RIS R - AR BB 2 AT

S ATRMIE T 2 B 1 SIEF & 2R
T

2015 2014

—E—hF —ZE—mF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Within one year —F R 4,133 4,080
In the second to fifth year, inclusive F_FEERF(REEEMT) 16,165 15,566
More than five years BiBAF 22,947 26,596
43,245 46,242

Other than as disclosed above, the Group had no material B EXPTIREES  REBRREHR

lease commitments outstanding at the end of reporting
period.
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32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. BEXAKIE
The Group TEE

2015 2014
—E-hHEF —E—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT
Contracted but not provided for BEETHRREE
— Additional cost to be incurred — ERBEREEZFEINAR
for animation under production 8,510 4,086
— Acquisition of plant and equipment  — B EEE M &RE - 364
— Additional capital injection in — FAMBAR L ESEXE (L8)
a subsidiary, ttmEF (LE) BERARMEHZEINTE
BRAF] = 2,182
8,510 6,632
Other than as disclosed above, the Group had no material B ECEFTEREN  REBRREEHR
capital commitments outstanding at the end of the report WEBAREEZ BEARALE -
period.
33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33. XARAR
The Group and the Company did not have any significant REBRRRAR _-_ZE—HFR_-F
contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2015 and 2014. —ME=A=+—HIWEERERLA
BfE-
34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 34, EHRE
The Group and the Company did not have any pledged REEBRARBIR_ZE—HEFR_F
assets as at 31 March 2015 and 2014. —OF=A=+—HITETRNEERE
E o

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
teEEEZERERAR
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35. RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group entered into the following
material related party and connected transactions.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as

35. HEALTRREXS
AN B 755 R R LA B0 TR 2
S AEBBETTIEAMEALR
BERS -
(a) EEEBASHMH

TRERABZHM(BHEMZE0
AR N TARRARES ZHIA)

disclosed in note 10 is as follows: N
2015 2014
—E—hF —ZE—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Directors’ fee, salaries, allowances and #Z£#% - 4 28K
other benefits H A 48 A 1,016 836
Share-based payments AN 1D BERE 2 3R 4,615 10,332
5,631 11,168
(b) Connected party transactions (b) BRAEALRS
2015 2014
—B-HF —TNOF
Name of connected persons Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
BREATERE RXHUE FERT FAT
Entrance Gate Limited Royalty fee in relation to the royalty 14 23
(Note 1) (Kfs£1) income generated from sub-licensing
of intellectual property right
IR AHBERFTE £ BRI R
ZENEE
The Star Overseas Limited Consultancy service fee in relation to 840 840
(Note 2) the film production
EBBINERAF (HiE2) MR EEREERRE . ER
Billion Winning Limited Promoation fee in relation to the royalty 6 -

(Note 3)

income generated from sub-licensing

of intellectual property right

BRBERRXR (KiZ3)
ZHEEEM
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35. RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS 35. MEATRAERS ()
(Continued)
(c) Outstanding balances with connected parties (c) EBEEALTZKRBELEE
2015 2014
—B-HFE —TNOF
Name of connected persons Nature of transactions HK$’000 HK$'000
BEATEE HE XEME FHET THTT
Entrance Gate Limited Royalty fee in relation to the royalty 185 171
(Note 1) (Kfs£1) income generated from sub-licensing
of intellectual property right
ERANBERFTESY 2 ENBRWAS 2
HNEE
The Star Overseas Limited Consultancy service fee in relation to 70 350
(Note 2) the film production
EEBINERAR (Ht2) SRR RUERHERRE 2 8RB
Billion Winning Limited Promotion fee in relation to the royalty 6 -
(Note 3) income generated from sub-licensing
of intellectual property right
BEBERAR (ME3) ERABEERFTESY 2 ENERA SR 2
HEEH
CineChina Limited Payment for procurement for investment 26,786 26,786
(Note 4) (K1:t4) of Cinema Business
BRERKIRETREE 2 K
Mr. Yin Gang (Note 5) Payment for procurement for investment 16,979 19,173
of Cinema Business
ENSi 5e 4 (Mfat 5) B RRRIRE B R 15 2 3K
Pacific Finder Limited Deposit paid for feasibility study 2,500 2,500

(Note 6]
WFBRAR (HEE)

on a film project
F—EEFEB ZATHERRE N 2ZE

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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35. RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(c) Outstanding balances with connected parties
(Continued)
Note 1: Entrance Gate is an independent third party of the

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

Company. However, the Licence Agreement between
Entrance Gate and High Amuse are inter-conditional with
the following connected transaction/continuing connected
transaction including (i) Service agreement for the
appointment of Mr. Chiau Sing Chi, as a director of the
Company, (ii) the Profit Transfer Deed between Ngai Wah
and High Amuse and (iii) acquisition agreement between
High Amuse and the shareholders of Raxco Assets Corp.
before the effective of the acquisition agreement. Royalty
fee payable to Entrance Gate in relation to the licence
agreement is disclosed as continuing connected
transaction.

Ms. Chow Man Ki, Kelly, a director of The Star Overseas
Limited, is an executive director of the Company since B
January 2014. Ms. Chow is also a sister of Mr. Chiau
Sing Chi who is a director of the Company. Accordingly,
Ms. Chow is considered a connected person during the
years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014 under GEM
Listing Rules.

Ms. Chow Man Ki, Kelly, a director of Billion Winning
Limited, is an executive director of the Company since 6
January 2014. Ms. Chow is also a sister of Mr. Chiau
Sing Chi who is a director of the Company. Accordingly,
Ms. Chow is considered a connected person during the
years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014 under GEM
Listing Rules.

CineChina Limited holds 30% equity interest in a subsidiary
of the Company and it is considered a connected person
under the GEM Listing Rules. The details of the connected
transaction is listed in note 21.

Mr. Yin Gang is a director of a subsidiary of the Company.
He is considered a connected person under the GEM
Listing Rule. The details of the connected transaction is
listed in note 21.

Ms. Chow Man Ki, Kelly, a director of Pacific Finder
Limited, is an executive director of the Company since B
January 2014. Accordingly, Ms. Chow is considered a
connected person under GEM Listing Rules.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year ended 31 March 2015
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company has the convertible bonds and share option

scheme for directors, employees and advisors of the
Group. Details of the convertible bonds and share options

are as follows:

Convertible bonds

Issuer:
Principal amount:

Issue date:
Maturity date:
Interest:
Conversion price:

The Company

HK$45 million in aggregate. The
Convertible Bonds in the amount of
HK$25 million issued on 1 June
2010 (“commencement date”) and
the remaining four tranches (each
worth HK$5 million, and HK$20
million in aggregate) of the
Convertible Bonds issued on the
date being the first, second, third
and fourth anniversary of the date
of commencement date.

1 June 2010

Ten years from the date of issue
Zero coupon

HK$0.136 per share (Note 1)

The fair values of the HK$45 million convertible bonds
determined on 1 June 2010 using binomial option pricing
model was HK$124,360,000.

The followings assumptions were used to calculate the fair
value of HK$45 million convertible bonds:

Principle amount:
Expected life:
Interest:
Redemption price:

Conversion price:
Risk-free rate:

Effective interest rate:

Share price:

Expected dividend yield:

Expected volatility:

HK$45 million

10 years

Nil

100% of the principal
amount

HK$0.136 (Note 1)

2.47%

16.73%

HK$0.27

0%

84.08%

36. LIBx{n & EREZ 13K
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ME - B\

B (E HR0.136/87T (Mt 1)
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T (EE A 3t EE45,000,000% T 2 7
B ESERE 2 A FHER124,360,000
BT e

5T &8 45,000,000 T2 AT R (E
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 36. IEinBBRZIR(E)
Share Option Scheme BBIRREST 2
Details of specific categories of options are as follow: B ER RS T
Option type: RS 201A 20118 2012A 2013A 20138 2014A
(Note 2)
(M&2)
Grant date: RiAs: 162010 2082010 2382012 4102013 4102013 174-2014
It 22 S 53 i St It 2z “2-mE
~A-H NAZ1H NAZ+=R tARmA TARA mATtA
Number of options granted: RERERA - 125,000,000 21,000,000 294,840,000 2,000,000 125,000,000 304,140,000
Evercise period: figs: 1122011 - 1562011- 2382012 - 4102013 - 4102013 - 1742014 -
3092013 1982016 22-82017 3102018 3102016 164-2019
EF 2FF I 2 E-cf FzF “E-pE
TZh-B% ~ATEAR NAZTZRE TABAZ TAMAZE mATtRZE
it 2 “ERF it “2N\F it S “E-nF
hA=1A NATAR NAZ+ZR tA=A tA=R mA+~A
Exercise price: TRE: HK30.20% 7 HK$0.4927% 1 HK30.1567 ¢ HK$0.1814% 1 HKS0.1814% HK$0.364 %
[Note 1] [Note 1] (Note 1)
(1) (1) (Wiiz1)
Fair value: AT HK$51,691,000%r  HK$5,324,000% HK$22,921,000%r  HK$110000%7w HK$6,000000%% HK$45,500,000% 7
The fair value of share options which were calculated by TR EAERETEBENTE 2B
binomial option pricing model with the following AT ETMERUTERE
assumptions:
Option type: RlRERR 2011A 20118 20124 2013A 20138 2014A
Share price as at grant date: ~ HWEHAHZRE - HK$0.27 AT HK$0.24:7T HK30.07677 HK$0.181AT HKS0.181%7T HKS0.355:7
Nature of the options: BRELME: Call 255 Call 35 Cal 26 Call 26 Call 3255 Call 358
Risk-free rate: EERAE 1.08% 1.28% 0.284% 0.54% 1.15% 1.38%
Expected life of the options: BRE/ERES:  40monthsfAA 6 years ¥ 5 years F 5 years F 3 years ¥ 5 years F
Expected volatility: R U 94.74% 91.85% 81.86% 65% 70% 62%
Expected dividend yield: BERE M - 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Exercise multiple: TR 2.8 2.2 2.2 1.4 1.4 2.4

RARFR - B H 175,000,000
JT2 AR &% K 304,140,000173 %
B-NHE-_Z-—AF=A=1+—HILF
€ ARAEMREX 46,076,000
BIC AR BEREZ R

During the year, HK$5,000,000 convertible bonds and
304,140,000 share options were granted/issued and the
Company recognised the total expenses of
HK$46,076,000 as share-based payments for year ended
31 March 2015.

K1 ER—E——FAATNBRERZKGHE
GHEHTZE -

Note 1: Adjusted for share consolidation effective from 18 September
2012.

Hfax2 - 2013BEBREEN —E—=F+_"A+t
HETZRRENASEAE -

Note 2: The 2013B share options were approved at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 17 December 2013.
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37. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Lofty Gain has taken legal actions to recover the receivable
from Huayi Brothers of approximately HK$13,900,000
during the year ended 31 March 2015 (see note 19 for
details). Subsequently on 15 April 2015, the PRC Court
rejected all of the petitions by Lofty Gain. It then
determined to lodge an appeal against the judgement
made by the PRC Court, after seeking legal opinions on the
judgement, and the notice of appeal has been lodged
already.

37. BENERER

BE_T-AF=-A=t—"BLFE"
RERBUER1TE Y O U LB
T #719,900,000% 7T & 15 R M &
19) - BEER-_Z—HAFWNA+HAB -
PEIERRERA R AFARB LK - BHA
ERORERPEDRRAAEFIREL £
o UCHRARARBEZRBERKRZ
R EFBAE -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFEMEBHE

The results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

AEERBEREMBRFECXENEERRA

five financial years are as follows: BT
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-RfF —T-WNF —T-=F —FT-——F —FE——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET FHET
RESULTS E4
Turnover EER 76,961 80,447 198,797 279,998 557,637
(Loss)/praofit before taxation BRI (E5B), A (60,137) (50,470) 14,605 (124,581) (166,762)
Taxation iE (2,839) (3,378) (885) (803) 9,841
(Loss)/profit before OBk IR S A
non-controlling interest (B8),/ &5 (62,976) (53,846) 13,720 (125,384) (156,921)
Non-controlling interests JEFEARRER (2,971) (5,618) (755) 1,221 -
(Loss)/profit attributable to KRTHEB AENL
owners of the Company (E518),/ &7l (65,947) (59,464) 12,965 (124,163) (156,921)
(Loss)/earnings per share i (H18),/BF
— Basic (cents) — EARGEW) (2.08) (1.94) 0.43 (7.70) (10.68)
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-5F —TWm§g =—T-=F —T-=-—F T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BERAE 238,468 238,506 296,856 156,019 170,889
Total liabilities aEER (95,273) (100,181) (117,958) (24,260) (92,164)
Non-controlling interests JEFEARRER 9,440 5,102 (527) (1,228) -
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